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V i s i o n and mis s ion
Vision
Australians have confidence that agricultural and veterinary chemicals are safe to use.

Mission
To protect the health and safety of Australia—its people, animals and environment—and support
Australian agriculture, by taking a scientific and risk-based approach to regulating agricultural and
veterinary chemicals.

C h i e f E x ec ut ive Offi ce r’s report
a n d o u t loo k
In 2015–16, the Australian Pesticides and Veterinary Medicines Authority (APVMA) focused heavily
on ways to lower the regulatory burden for industry when it comes to making an application, as well
as improving the overall experience of applicants in interacting and transacting with the APVMA.
We looked across the agency and to industry and asked what we had done well and what could
be improved. We focused on user-centred improvements to our systems and processes, while
continuing to build a capable and high-performing organisation with scientific excellence at its
heart.
Our governance, risk-management and decision-making approaches were reviewed and revamped
and we built organisational capability in project design and delivery.
We effectively implemented a range of legislative reforms and provided greater transparency for
industry by publishing our performance against statutory timeframes on our website.
Importantly, our efforts were informed by collaboration and consultation, by designing systems with
the user in mind, and by taking action to stop things that were not working. This approach has been
well received by industry, and we are starting to see early signs it will translate into productivity
gains for both the regulated community and the APVMA.

Reducing the regulatory burden for industry
Building on our work with the University of Melbourne’s Centre of Excellence for Biosecurity Risk
Analysis, we finalised a risk-assessment model and have started a pilot to test innovative and
fast-tracked registration pathways for products. Through this work our intention is to better align
regulatory effort with risk—further reducing the regulatory burden for industry. This is groundbreaking work that has not been done by any other regulator. The APVMA received $7.3 million in
funding from the Agriculture White Paper to advance this work.

Improving timeframe performance
Since the introduction of reforms in 2014, we have continued to make steady progress in improving
application assessment times. An audit undertaken this year shows that the average time taken to
register a product is now shorter than under the previous legislation.
Final quarter 2015–16 results showed an overall improvement in timeframe performance and
the numbers of applications being finalised. We invested effort in clearing overdue applications,
particularly those transitioned from the previous legislation, to ensure that our performance against
timeframes for finalising applications can improve over time.
Recruitment of new specialist staff and improvements to systems and workflow processes
implemented in the second half of 2015–16 is continuing, and final quarter results show promising
signs for longer-term improvement.

ix
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A new approach to pre-application assistance
We also took action in 2015–16 to address issues with the initial implementation of the
pre-application assistance initiative—part of the package of 2014 reforms. Working with industry,
we co-designed a new process for managing all types of requests for assistance from applicants.
At the same time, we simplified the previously complex fee-for-service arrangements for
pre-application and technical assistance and replaced them with a simpler more flexible threetiered approach. We also streamlined our internal processes for advice and assistance to improve
the user experience, including moving to a designated account manager model for managing all
enquiries.

It’s all about the science
This year, the APVMA continued its positive contribution to international forums.
Our scientists provided independent expert advice to United Nations and World Health
Organization committees, including the Joint Meeting on Pesticides Residues, and represented
Australia on the international standard-setting committees of the Codex Alimentarius Commission
for pesticides and veterinary medicines.
We continued to contribute to global harmonisation in agricultural and veterinary (agvet) chemical
regulation, including chairing three OECD committees. The APVMA CEO became chair of the
OECD Working Group on Pesticides—the main international gathering of pesticide regulators
across the world. We also co-chaired two expert groups—one developing guidance for conducting
rotational crop field trials, and the other in the emerging field of RNA interference (RNAi).
Our annual science day, held in Canberra in October 2015, attracted more than 200 industry and
government attendees to hear from world-renowned scientists on advances in risk assessment,
including aquatic risk modelling, dietary exposure, and veterinary drug residues.
Through participation in the Australian Regulatory Science Network, we contributed to a wholeof-government approach to the regulation of chemicals and biological agents, and through our
APVMA-initiated workshops and seminars we shared regulatory science expertise with staff,
industry, government and the scientific community on a range of topics, including risk-profiling,
emerging technologies and exposure modelling.
We complemented and built in-house expertise by tapping into academic and industry scientific
excellence through our science fellows program, and we initiated work to support future regulatory
science capability by working with universities to develop course content that is directly relevant to
regulatory science.

Compliance and good manufacturing practice
This year we reviewed and strengthened our strategic risk-based approach to compliance and
good manufacturing practice, and engaged a specialist consultant to review our overall approach
to licensing and auditing of veterinary manufacturers for completion in 2016–17.
We investigated every allegation of non-compliance and risk-assessed each one before any action
was taken, to ensure our efforts on behalf of industry and the community were proportional to the
risk and maintained the integrity of the Australian regulatory system.

Consultation
In 2015–16, the APVMA initiated over 60 separate consultations. While the majority of matters were
related to our statutory requirements for registration and approval of chemicals, we also sought
industry and stakeholder views on standard setting policies, including the adoption and use of
international standards, assessments and data guidelines.
During 2015, we also conducted public consultations around Australia, with industry, growers,
government agencies and the community, to prioritise chemicals as part of our formal chemical
review program.

Improving access to chemicals
Our work with the Department of Agriculture and Water Resources to develop an Australian crop
group list will mean improved access to chemicals for Australian growers, as well as a reduction in
the costs involved in registering agvet chemicals for a broader range of uses in Australia.
We considered more than 500 permits to identify whether their use could be moved to permanent
label registration. This work will be progressed in 2016–17, and when fully operational, has the
potential to eliminate the need for industry and growers to renew permits each year, saving
considerable time and effort for all parties.

Inquiries, reviews and court decisions
The APVMA appeared before both the Senate Estimates Rural and Regional Affairs and Transport
Legislation Committee and the House of Representatives Standing Committee on Agriculture, for
their inquiry into agricultural innovation.
We also provided submissions to the Productivity Commission’s public inquiry into regulation of
agriculture and to the Queensland Parliament’s inquiry into veterinary surgeons’ use of the Hendra
virus vaccine.
A Federal Court decision in June 2016 has meant a change in how we assess applications for
generic products involving reference products—we now have to assess each application on a case
by case basis to determine whether any confidential commercial information may be disclosed.
We will work with industry to streamline these processes as much as possible, while ensuring the
interests of both product innovators and the generics industry are considered.

Looking forward
We will continue to build on the expertise and scientific capability of our people to regulate safe
chemicals for the Australian community.
We will use our involvement and contribution to scientific and regulatory thinking—through
forums in Australia and around the world—to bring the latest scientific expertise to the table in the
regulatory decisions we make every day.
This commitment to scientific excellence, combined with our ongoing drive for business process
improvement and efficiency, will continue to support our long-term goals of reducing the regulatory
burden for industry, improving access to chemicals and increasing productivity.
I am pleased to present this annual report of our work in 2015–16.
Kareena Arthy
Chief Executive Officer
September 2016
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C o rpo r at e profile an d purpose
The Australian Pesticides and Veterinary Medicines Authority (APVMA) is an independent statutory
authority responsible for the assessment and registration of agricultural chemicals and veterinary
medicines (agvet chemicals) and for their regulation up to and including the point of retail sale.
The APVMA evaluates the safety and performance of agvet chemicals intended for sale in Australia
to ensure that the health and safety of people, animals, crops and the environment are protected and
that Australia’s international trade is not jeopardised through the use of the chemicals.
More than 11 500 pesticide and veterinary medicine products are currently registered in Australia,
including products for treating crop and garden diseases and pests, and medicines for treating
agricultural and companion animals.
Our work supports primary industries—agriculture, forestry, horticulture and aquaculture—by allowing
the supply of safe, effective animal health and crop protection products. Our work also supports
consumers by ensuring that household and garden pesticides and pet products are
safe to use.
Our role extends beyond registration of pesticides and veterinary medicines to encompass a range
of activities aimed at ensuring chemical products can be used safely. We license and audit veterinary
manufacturers to ensure that they adhere to APVMA-prescribed manufacturing standards and
regularly review chemicals, that are on the market, to ensure they are safe to use. We manage an
Adverse Experience Reporting Program (AERP) to ensure early detection of unforeseen problems with
registered chemicals, and also monitor the market for compliance, and review and take regulatory
action on registered pesticides and veterinary medicines when concerns are raised.
The APVMA operates under an intergovernmental agreement between the Commonwealth
Government and all states and territories. Under this agreement, the APVMA is responsible for
regulating agvet chemicals up to and including the point of sale. The states and territories are
responsible for regulating agvet chemicals after they are sold, a process which is known as
‘control of use’. The APVMA does not have responsibility for monitoring how chemicals are used.
The APVMA is a portfolio agency of the Minister for Agriculture and Water Resources, the
Hon Barnaby Joyce MP.

E n abl i ng legis lat i on
The APVMA is established under the Agricultural and Veterinary Chemicals (Administration) Act
1992 (Administration Act).
Functions and powers are conferred on the APVMA by the Administration Act, the Agricultural
and Veterinary Chemicals Code (Agvet Code) scheduled to the Agricultural and Veterinary
Chemicals Code Act 1994, the Agricultural and Veterinary Chemicals Code Regulations 1995 (Agvet
Regulations) and the Agvet Codes and Agvet Regulations of each state or participating territory.
The APVMA is a corporate Commonwealth entity under the Public Governance, Performance and
Accountability Act 2013 (PGPA Act). A corporate Commonwealth entity is a body corporate that is
legally separate from the Commonwealth.

Functions and powers

3

nn assess the suitability for sale in Australia of active constituents for proposed or existing
chemical products, registered chemical products and labels for containers for chemical
products
nn ensure that approvals and registrations for active constituents for chemical products,
chemical products and labels for containers for chemical products comply with the Agvet
Code and the Agricultural and Veterinary Chemicals Code Regulations 1995 (Agvet Code
Regulations)
nn provide information to the Australian Government and its agencies, and the states and
territories, about approved active constituents for proposed or existing chemical products,
registered chemical products and approved labels for such products, and cooperate with
the Australian Government and its agencies on matters relating to the management and
control of chemical products
nn collect and publish relevant information and statistics on approvals and registrations
granted, and permits and licences issued under the Agvet Code
nn facilitate a consistent approach to the assessment and control of agvet chemicals,
in conjunction with the Australian Government and its agencies, and the states and
participating territories
nn exchange information relating to chemical products and their use, with overseas and
international bodies that have similar functions to those of the APVMA
nn report to or advise the minister on matters relating to the performance of the APVMA’s
functions.

M i n i s te r ial d irec t ions and
go ve rn m ent po l ic y orders
Under s. 10 of the Administration Act, the Australian Government minister responsible for
administering pesticide and veterinary medicine legislation may direct the APVMA (in writing)
concerning its functions or powers under Australian, state or territory laws. The APVMA must
comply with any such direction. No ministerial directions or Government policy orders were issued
to the APVMA during 2015–16.

S i gn i f i c ant non- c ompl i an ce
iss u e s w it h financ e l aw
No issues were reported to the Minister for Agriculture and Water Resources under paragraph 19(1)
(e) of the PGPA Act that related to non-compliance with the finance law in relation to the entity.

O R G A N I S AT I O N O V E R V I E W

The key functions of the APVMA, which are set out in section 7 of the Administration
Act, are to:
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F u n d i ng
The APVMA is a cost-recovered agency. Registrants pay application fees to register new products
and active constituents, amend a current registration or apply for a permit. An annual fee is payable
to renew the registration of a product. Product owners also pay an annual levy based on the sales of
their registered products.
Levies are imposed under the Agricultural and Veterinary Chemical Products Levy Imposition
(General) Act 1994, the Agricultural and Veterinary Chemical Products Levy Imposition (Excise) Act
1994 and the Agricultural and Veterinary Chemical Products Levy Imposition (Customs) Act 1994.
Levies are collected under the Agricultural and Veterinary Chemical Products (Collection of Levy)
Act 1994, and the levy rates are prescribed in the Regulations to the Act.
The Australian Government Department of Agriculture and Water Resources is currently conducting
a first-principles review of the APVMA’s cost recovery arrangements.
The APVMA’s income for 2015–16 was $30.546 million, an increase of $0.805 million (2.71 per cent)
from 2014–15 (see Chapter 4). The APVMA’s equity dropped to $7.312 million this year. This is
$0.312 million above the APVMA’s nominal reserve of $7 million.

S i gn i f i c ant ac t ivit i es and ch ange s
During 2015–16 no significant changes affected the operations or structure of the APVMA.

The APVMA management structure (Figure 1) supports effective operation, communication and
strategic understanding at all levels of the organisation.

Figure 1: APVMA organisation structure as at 30 June 2016
Chief Executive Officer

Office of the Chief Executive Officer

Scientific Assessment and
Chemical Review

Chemical Review
Chemistry and Manufacture
Residues and Trade
Health Assessment Team
Environmental Assessment Coordinator
Efficacy Assessment Coordinator
Scientific Standards and Data Guidelines
Risk-Based Assessment Framework

Registration Management and
Evaluation

Case Management and Administration Unit
Veterinary Medicines
Pesticides
Minor Use
Biologicals
Quality Oversight and Reporting

Corporate Services

Finance
Human Resources and Development
Information Management and Technology
Procurement and Partnership Management
Public Affairs and Communication

Legal and Compliance

Legal
Compliance and Monitoring
Manufacturing Quality and Licensing

Office of the Chief Scientist

Principal Scientist

The APVMA executive team is responsible for business and compliance performance. It oversees
the development of key corporate plans and strategies, monitors and reviews organisational
performance and risk, and ensures that we meet our regulatory obligations. The executive and
APVMA staff use their collective skills and experience to develop and consider strategic initiatives
and operational issues.
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Exe cu t i ve manage ment an d
s tru ctu re
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Ms Kareena Arthy
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Chief Executive Officer
The Chief Executive Officer (CEO) is responsible for APVMA governance and
management, including the exercise of the APVMA’s powers and functions.
The CEO consults with key stakeholders to set the organisation’s vision,
objectives and strategies to meet its legislative responsibilities. The CEO
approves the APVMA’s corporate and operational plans and budgets,
monitors financial and operational performance, and oversees program
performance. The CEO leads the agency’s engagement efforts, particularly
its engagement with key international agencies.

Ms Cate Saunders
Executive Director, Corporate Services, and Chief Operating Officer
The Chief Operating Officer and Executive Director, Corporate Services
manages finance and administration, human resources, public affairs and
communication, information technology (including operations, security,
information services and application development), procurement, business
systems and organisational performance analysis. Key responsibilities include
providing timely and accurate financial data and preparing financial plans,
budgets and strategies that support the APVMA’s ability to deliver quality
services with the funds available. The Executive Director is also responsible
for risk management, records management, physical and personnel security,
and e-commerce.

Dr Raj Bhula BSc (Hons) PhD
Executive Director, Scientific Assessment and Chemical Review
The Executive Director, Scientific Assessment and Chemical Review
manages the expert assessment areas of the APVMA and the Chemical
Review Program. This includes the chemistry and manufacture team, the
residues team and the assessment coordinators for health, environment and
efficacy. Responsibilities include determining whether registered chemicals
continue to meet contemporary standards, and continuously improving data
guidelines and the quality of the assessments contributing to registration
and review processes.

Mr Alan Norden
Executive Director, Registration Management and Evaluation
The Executive Director, Registration Management and Evaluation manages
the evaluation and registration of pesticides and veterinary medicines.
Responsibilities include granting permits, certificates of export and import
consents, and managing applications and enquiries for pesticides and
veterinary medicines.

Ms Elizabeth Carroll
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The Executive Director, Legal and Compliance, and General Counsel
provides and oversees the provision of legal advice and support to the
CEO and staff on all aspects of the APVMA’s regulatory, administrative
and corporate functions. Responsibilities include delivering the APVMA’s
compliance operations, and coordinating advice, briefings and reports
regarding policy development, regulatory matters and operational issues
from a whole-of-agency perspective for the minister, the CEO and the
broader agency.

Dr Phil Reeves BVSc (Hons) PhD FANZCVS
Chief Scientist
The Chief Scientist ensures that the APVMA’s regulatory science frameworks
and standards meet appropriate national and international standards.
Through engagement with national and international scientific and
regulatory networks, the Chief Scientist identifies issues and trends that
may affect the integrity of these frameworks and standards, and develops
appropriate projects and initiatives to improve the APVMA’s scientific
capability. Responsibilities also include providing the CEO and senior staff
with independent, expert advice on regulatory decisions and scientific
aspects of the APVMA’s regulatory framework, and managing the APVMA’s
office of the Chief Scientist.
We also recognise the following people who contributed to the APVMA executive team
during 2015–16:
Mr Tony de la Fosse, Ms Geetha Nair and Dr Matthew O’Mullane.

O R G A N I S AT I O N O V E R V I E W

A/g Executive Director, Legal and Compliance, and General Counsel

A P V M A A N N U A L R E P O R T 2 0 1 5–1 6

8

S taff profile
Table 1 provides details of Australian Public Service (APS) employees employed at the APVMA
under the Public Service Act 1999 in 2015–16.
We had 182 full-time and part-time ongoing staff at 30 June 2016. There were also 16 non-ongoing
or casual staff, bringing the total number of staff to 198 (122 female, 76 male). No staff identify as
being Indigenous. All staff are located in Canberra, except for one staff member who is in Perth.
In 2015–16, the separation rate for ongoing staff was 18.7 per cent, which is an increase from the
8.8 per cent separation rate of the previous year.

Table 1: APVMA staffing at 30 June 2016
NONONGOING
AND CASUAL

FULL-TIME
(ONGOING)

PART-TIME
(ONGOING)

CEO

0

0

1

1

Senior Executive
Officer

3

0

1

4

Chief/Principal Scientist

2

0

0

2

EL2

27

0

1

28

EL1

42

11

5

58

APS 6

49

5

1

55

APS 5

19

2

2

23

APS 4

14

0

2

16

APS 3

7

1

3

11

APS 2

0

0

0

0

Trainee

0

0

0

0

163

19

16

198

CLASSIFICATION

Total

APS = Australian Public Service; CEO = Chief Executive Officer; EL = executive level

TOTAL

S tra te g ic fr amework and
re p o rt i ng
The APVMA corporate plan 2015–19 identifies four strategies (Figure 2):
nn Strategy 1 – deliver regulatory decisions that are timely, science-based and proportionate to the
risks managed
nn Strategy 2 – reduce the burden on industry in complying with regulatory requirements
nn Strategy 3 – build a client-focused approach to service delivery, committed to continuous
improvement
nn Strategy 4 – operate as a contemporary, high-performing and efficient organisation.

Figure 2: APVMA objectives and strategies
The APVMA operational plan 2015–16 identified a range of activities to achieve the corporate
plan goals.

1
Deliver regulatory decisions
that are timely, science-based
and proportionate to the
risks being managed

3
Build a client-focused
approach to service
delivery, committed to
continuous improvement

2
Reduce the burden on
industry in complying with
regulatory requirements

4
Operate as a
contemporary, highperforming and efficient
organisation

O R G A N I S AT I O N O V E R V I E W
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and management
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P l a n n i ng
Corporate and operational plans
Our central planning document is the corporate plan, which defines the principal objectives
of the APVMA and gives a broad outline of the strategies devised to achieve these objectives.
The corporate plan aligns with the APVMA Regulator Performance Framework (RPF), which
outlines our key performance measures.
In addition, each year we develop an operational plan that sets out the actions needed to achieve
the objectives in the corporate plan. We measure our operational effectiveness annually through
the performance indicators in the operational plan and the Portfolio Budget Statement (PBS).

C o n s ul t at ion and col l aborat i on
We work closely with industry stakeholders, national and international regulatory agencies and
standard-setting bodies to ensure we are meeting the needs of the regulated community and
continuing to operate as a world-class regulator. Stakeholders from industry, chemical users,
government and the community are regularly invited to provide input to our decision making,
through consultations on chemicals proposed for registration or active approvals and in the
development of standards, guidelines and operational policy.

G o ve rnanc e s t r ucture
The APVMA governance structure aligns accountabilities relating to decision making, scientific
assessment and operational delivery to support the agency in delivering outcomes. The committee
governance structure aligns with principles of public sector governance to provide accountability,
transparency, integrity, stewardship, efficiency and leadership. It supports APVMA staff in adhering
to public sector values to be impartial, committed to service, respectful, accountable and ethical.

Executive
Leadership Team

The Executive Leadership Team (ELT) comprises the senior executive
and is chaired by the CEO. The ELT provides strategic, whole-oforganisation advice and direction relevant to decision making,
management and oversight of the APVMA’s operations and
performance.

Audit Committee

This subcommittee reports to the CEO. It assists the agency to
discharge its responsibilities under the Agricultural and Veterinary
Chemicals (Administration) Act 1992 and the Public Governance,
Performance and Accountability Act 2013 regarding financial reporting,
performance reporting, risk oversight and management, internal
control and compliance with relevant laws and policies. The committee
is not responsible for the executive management of these functions.

Registration Quality
Committee

The Registration Quality Committee is a subcommittee reporting to
the ELT. It oversees the quality of decision making in the registration
activities of the APVMA, and ensures that systems, processes and
capability support high-quality decision making that is consistent and
legally defensible.

Science Quality
Committee

The Science Quality Committee (SQC) is a subcommittee reporting
to the ELT. It advises and decides on matters of science and science
quality relevant to the functions of the APVMA.

Enforcement
Committee

The Enforcement Committee is a subcommittee reporting to the ELT.
It oversees the potential use and actual use of coercive powers.

Major Projects
Board

The Major Projects Board oversees the progress of projects that are
significant to the operational direction of the agency. The board
oversees project deliverables, resourcing requirements, timeframes
and management of risks. It also ensures that cross-project
opportunities and issues are identified and addressed.

The Senior Leadership Team provides a forum for the senior operational managers in the agency to
identify opportunities for internal collaboration, innovation and performance improvement, and to
develop leadership.
The APVMA operates a Work Health and Safety Committee and a Staff Consultative Committee to
consider and progress employee matters.
The Administration Act provides for an advisory board to advise and make recommendations to the
APVMA CEO regarding the performance, function or exercise of particular powers of the APVMA.
There are currently no members appointed to the board. Previous appointments expired in November
2015.
The APVMA CEO is the accountable authority for purposes of the PGPA Act and is a statutory
officer. APVMA guidance material for employees includes policies relating to security, appropriate
management of confidential information, financial and procurement practices, use of social media,
conflicts of interest, travel, performance management and workplace safety. These policies operate in
line with and in addition to requirements under the APS Code of Conduct and legislative framework
governing the conduct of APS employees. The APVMA undertakes corporate risk management with
regular review by executive staff.
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APVMA Advisory Board
The advisory board was established under the Agricultural and Veterinary Chemicals
(Administration) Act 1992 (the Administration Act) to provide advice and make recommendations to
the CEO regarding APVMA activities.
Advisory board members did not represent particular interests, and were appointed by the minister
based on experience in the regulation of chemical products, the agricultural chemical industry,
primary production, environmental toxicology, consumer interests, public health, and work health
and safety.
There are no members currently appointed to the advisory board, and previous memberships
expired in November 2015.

Meetings and attendance
The advisory board met twice in 2015–16: on 27 August, 2015 and 5 November 2015. Attendance at
advisory board meetings is shown in Table 3.

Table 3: Attendance at advisory board meetings 2015
MEETINGS ELIGIBLE
TO ATTEND

MEETINGS
ATTENDED

Lyn Fragar (Chair)

2

2

Sandra Baxendell

2

2

Bronwyn Capanna

2

1

John Hassell

2

2

David Lawson

2

2

Gordon Reidy

2

2

Selwyn Snell

2

1

Roger Toffolon

2

2

Lisa Wade

2

2

Australian Department of
Agriculture and Water
Resources representative

2

2

MEMBER

Issues considered
Key matters discussed included the development of strategies regarding regulatory science and
compliance, industry engagement, regulatory reform projects, consideration of reform activities
and updating the environmental scan for the APVMA operating environment. The board also
provided advice and recommendations concerning APVMA activities to the APVMA CEO.

Declarations of interest
Members of the advisory board are required under the Administration Act to disclose any direct or
indirect financial interests that could conflict with the proper performance of the advisory board’s
function. No conflicts of interest were reported during 2015–16.

APVMA Audit Committee
The audit committee is part of the APVMA governance and risk framework. Its terms of reference
are to provide independent assurance and advice to the CEO concerning the risk control and
compliance framework, the APVMA’s financial and management responsibilities, and performance
reporting and external accountability responsibilities.
The committee members include an external independent chair, a representative from an external
organisation, and a member of APVMA executive management. Committee observers and advisers
can include representatives from the Australian National Audit Office, the internal auditor, the
APVMA CEO, the APVMA Chief Financial Officer, the APVMA Chief Information Officer and other
management representatives.

Meetings and attendance
The audit committee met four times in 2015–16: in September and November 2015, and February
and May 2016. Attendance at audit committee meetings is shown in Table 4.

Table 4: Attendance at audit committee meetings 2015–16

REPRESENTATIVE

MEMBER’S
ORGANISATION

MEETINGS
ELIGIBLE TO
ATTEND

MEETINGS
ATTENDED

Peter Hoefer

External
independent chair

4

4

Cate Saunders

APVMA

4

4

Claude Gauchat

External
organisation
representative

4

4

Appointment
pending

External
organisation
representative

4

0
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In 2015–16, the audit committee:
nn reviewed the previous year’s financial statements and Certificate of Compliance
nn monitored the schedule for preparation of annual financial statements for 2015–16
nn monitored the financial planning and performance of the APVMA
nn monitored and advised on the continued implementation of legislative reforms, the associated
business reforms and IT enhancements from 1 July 2014
nn reviewed and monitored the Risk Management Plan and Risk Register
nn reviewed the APVMA Fraud Control Plan 2015–16
nn monitored key performance indicators of the committee
nn monitored and advised on the internal audit program, including audits of records management,
the enforcement of the Agvet Code and the agency’s regulatory framework performance metrics.

Presentations
In 2015–16, the audit committee received a presentation by Deloitte Australia on the agency’s
Strategic Risk Profile and Risk Appetite, and by KPMG on the Protective Security Policy Framework
(PSPF).

Declarations of interest
No conflicts of interest that would interfere with the proper performance of the audit committee’s
functions were declared at any meeting in 2015–16.

Manufacturers’ Licensing Scheme Industry Liaison Committee
The APVMA established the Manufacturers’ Licensing Scheme Industry Liaison Committee (MLSILC)
as a forum to discuss strategic and operational issues relating to the Manufacturers’ Licensing
Scheme and the Overseas Good Manufacturing Practice Scheme with industry representatives and
auditors.

Terms of reference
The terms of reference of the MLSILC are to:
nn obtain the views of industry members and auditors on issues of an operational, technical or
strategic nature
nn advance the development and review of operating procedures, manufacturing standards and
guidelines relevant to the Australian Manufacturers’ Licensing Scheme and the Overseas Good
Manufacturing Practice Scheme
nn provide industry input into APVMA operational planning processes relating to manufacturing
issues
nn identify opportunities for regulatory reform within the existing framework
nn consider the effect of proposed policy changes on APVMA operations, and implications for
industry
nn facilitate communication with industry and other stakeholders.

Meetings and attendance
The committee met three times in 2015–16: in August and December 2015, and April 2016. Figures
for membership and attendance at MLSILC meetings are shown in Table 5.

Table 5: Manufacturers’ Licensing Scheme Industry Liaison Committee meetings
2015–16

REPRESENTATIVE

MEMBER
ORGANISATION

MEETINGS
ELIGIBLE TO
ATTEND

MEETINGS
ATTENDED

Bruce Johnson
(Chair: August 2015,
retired 31 March 2016)

APVMA

2

1

Kathryn Winterton
(Chair: December 2015,
April 2016)

APVMA

3

3

Garry Hartridge
(Secretary: August 2015,
December 2015)

APVMA

3

2

Sean Jacovelli
(Secretary: April 2016)

APVMA

1

1

Bill Blackhall
(retired after August 2015)

Veterinary Manufacturers
and Distributors
Association

1

1

Ian Saunders

Veterinary Manufacturers
and Distributors
Association

3

3

Matthew Sherriff

Animal Medicines
Australia Ltd

3

2

John Aird

Feed Ingredients and
Additives Association of
Australia

3

2

Ian Wheatley

Auditors’ representative

3

3

Jim Adams
(attended part of one
meeting)

Veterinary Manufacturers
and Distributors
Association

1

1

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AND MANAGEMENT
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Issues considered
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Issues considered in 2015–16 included:
nn feedback from 2015 auditors’ workshop on topics raised by industry
nn updates on the progress of revised risk-based audit scheduling and management methodology
nn updates on guidance for ‘release for supply’ by toll manufacturers
nn progress with auditing and licensing of veterinary medicine product manufacturers
nn international recognition issues
nn status of the external review of APVMA’s good manufacturing practice (GMP) programs
nn APVMA’s compliance and enforcement strategy
nn the future operation of the committee.

Declarations of interest
There were no matters declared by any member of the MLSILC that would give rise to any personal
material conflict of interest. The APVMA maintains records of declarations.

A cc o u nt abil it y
Corporate risk management
The methodology used to assess risk at the APVMA is consistent with the international risk
management standard and best practice. The APVMA reviewed its approach to strategic risk in
2016–17 and developed a new risk management framework.
The APVMA’s Senior Leadership Team conducts regular reviews to ensure that all risks to the
organisation are identified. Risk analysis of major projects is also undertaken and regularly reviewed.
Risks are assessed and scored, with consensus sought on the likelihood of the risk occurring and
the possible consequences. Treatments are developed and controls are documented for high and
unacceptable risks. The treatments are monitored to ensure that they are implemented. A regularly
updated risk register documents these risks.
The APVMA Audit Committee regularly reviews this framework and the risk register.

Fraud control
The APVMA has a fraud risk assessment and a fraud control plan that comply with the
Commonwealth fraud control guidelines. The plan includes fraud prevention, detection,
investigation, reporting and data collection procedures. This year we developed a new fraud
control plan for 2014–16.
There were no cases of fraud during the reporting period.

The APVMA Gazette lists all APVMA notices and decisions as required under the Agvet Code,
including registrations, reviews and changes to registration status. The gazette is published
fortnightly and is available from our website.
The APVMA prepares reports of its performance in meeting regulatory obligations, and presents a
range of statistics, including:
nn chemical product registration
nn active ingredient approvals
nn permits issued
nn veterinary manufacturers licensing and auditing
nn preliminary assessment and pre-application assistance.
The reporting includes:
nn the number of applications started and finalised
nn the proportion of applications finalised within legislative timeframes
nn work in progress at the end of the period.

APVMA service charter
The APVMA has a service charter that outlines the standards of service people can expect when
engaging and transacting with us, and what we expect from them. We take action to improve our
processes regularly with the aim of both reducing the regulatory burden for industry and increasing
productivity at the APVMA.

Privacy
The APVMA adheres to the Privacy Act 1988. You can find our privacy policy on our website.
Our operations were not subject to any report or determinations by the Privacy Commissioner
during the period covered by this report.

Re l a te d ent it y t r ansact i on s
During 2015–16, the APVMA contracted the Department of Health to provide scientific assessment
advice related to toxicology and work health and safety. This was the continuation of a relationship
that began in 2000. Initially, the Department of Health was the sole provider of these services;
however, since 2015, several other external entities have provided these services. In 2015–16 there
were 63 individual transactions with the Department of Health totalling $1 958 000 (on an accrual
basis).
Similarly, the APVMA contracted the Department of Environment and Energy to provide
environmental scientific assessment advice during 2015–16. The Department of Environment
and Energy is now one of several entities that provide this service. During 2015–16 there were 31
individual transactions totalling $563 000 (on an accrual basis).
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J u d i ci a l dec isions an d re v i ews by
o u ts i d e bo d ies
Parliamentary committees and other reviews
The APVMA appeared before the Senate Estimates Rural and Regional Affairs and Transport
Legislation Committee hearings on 20 November 2015 (supplementary), 9 February 2016
(additional) and 5 May 2016 (budget).
The APVMA appeared before the House of Representatives Standing Committee on Agriculture
and Industry’s Inquiry into agricultural innovation on 17 March 2016. The APVMA provided
submissions to the Productivity Commission’s Public inquiry into regulation of agriculture on
12 February 2016 and the Queensland Parliament’s Agriculture and Environment Committee’s
Inquiry into the Hendra virus (HeV) Equivacc vaccine and its use by veterinary surgeons in
Queensland in April 2016.

Auditor-General’s reports
The Australian National Audit Office did not audit the APVMA in 2015–16, other than to audit the
APVMA 2014–15 financial statements.

Ombudsman
During 2015–16, the Commonwealth Ombudsman conducted one investigation that concerned
the APVMA. A complaint had been made about our decision to treat a registration application
as withdrawn. After receiving submissions from the APVMA, the Commonwealth Ombudsman
decided that no further investigation was required.

Courts and tribunals
During 2015–16, the APVMA was notified of four matters before the Administrative Appeals
Tribunal (AAT), and one matter before the Federal Court of Australia. The AAT matters were
adjourned pending the outcome of the Federal Court matter.
A Federal Court matter carried over from 2014–15 was completed in August 2015.

Office of the Australian Information Commissioner reviews
During 2015–16, the APVMA received notification of one review or complaint from the Office of the
Australian Information Commissioner (OAIC).
The OAIC review of a freedom of information internal review decision was withdrawn.

The APVMA has no subsidiaries.

I n de m nit ies and insu ran ce
pre m i u ms
The APVMA’s insurance with Comcover includes liability cover up to $150 million for professional
indemnity, and directors’ and officers’ liability. The insurance premium paid to cover the 2015–16
financial year was $50 655 (including GST).

Disability reporting
The new National Disability Strategy 2010–20, which supersedes the Commonwealth Disability
Strategy, sets out a 10-year national policy framework to improve the lives of people with disability,
promote participation and create a more inclusive society. A high-level two-yearly report tracks
progress against each of the six outcome areas of the strategy, and presents a picture of how
people with disability are faring.
The APVMA partnered with Black Mountain School, an ACT public school specialising in the field of
special education, on the placement of a student within the APVMA. This initiative assists students
to develop their skills to improve employability after leaving school. It has been a truly rewarding
experience for the student and APVMA staff.
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I n tro d uc t ion
The APVMA is an independent statutory authority responsible for the assessment and registration
of agvet chemicals.
The 2015–16 annual performance statement of the APVMA is provided to meet the requirements
under paragraph s39(1)(a) of the Public Governance, Performance and Accountability Act 2013
(PGPA Act). The statements reflect the performance of the entity and comply with subsection 39(2)
of the PGPA Act.
There have been no variations from the PBS in 2015–16.

About the annual performance statement
The Performance Indicators (PI) presented in this statement are drawn from:
nn the APVMA portfolio budget statement
nn the APVMA corporate plan 2015–19
nn the APVMA regulator performance framework 2015–16.
These documents cover performance relating to:
nn timely regulatory decision making
nn removal of unnecessary impediments
nn communication
nn approaches to regulatory risk
nn compliance and monitoring
nn transparency
nn enhancing regulatory frameworks
nn regulatory science
nn operating as a high-performing organisation.
Presented in this statement are the metrics underneath each performance indicator and a highlevel summary of the outcomes for 2015–16. Cross-references to the APVMA regulator performance
framework are provided.
Information is provided as required to provide further explanation of performance.
The individual activities the APVMA undertook in 2015–16, as contained in the operational plan,
directly relate to the performance indicators discussed in this statement. A report on progress of
the activities in the 2015–16 operational plan is in Appendix A.

T i m e l y regulat or y de ci si on
m a ki n g
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In 2015–16, the APVMA commenced assessment of 5106 applications covering:
nn pre-application assistance
nn pesticide and veterinary medicine products
nn active constituents
nn permits
nn nominated agents and changes to holders (Items 8L, 8M and 8P)
nn technical assessments under Item 25
nn notifiable variations
nn import consents
nn certificates of exports.

Table 6: Summary of activities related to regulatory decisions in the APVMA July
2015 – June 2016
TYPES OF REGULATORY
DECISIONS

COMMENCED

FINALISED/ISSUED

IN PROGRESS

Pre-application assistance

175

145

42

Product registration—
pesticides

905

1029

408

Product registration—
veterinary medicines

701

704

316

Actives

342

213

289

Permits

562

599

179

Items 8L, 8M, 8P

695

689

32

15

24

12

Notifiable variations

736

696

37

Import consents

608

620

61

Certificates of export

367

429

30

5106

5148

1406

Item 25

Total
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PERFORMANCE INDICATOR: Percentage of applications completed within timeframes
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METRIC

RESULTS

RPF REFERENCE

Timeframe performance met for
100% product registration*

66%

1.3.B

Timeframe performance met for
100% active approvals*

70%

1.3.B

Timeframe performance met for
100% permits*

70%

1.3.B

90% of consents to import are
processed within 14 days

86%

1.3.B

100% of internal review requests
addressed within the 90-day
timeframe

63%

1.3.B

100% of pre-application
assistance timeframes
are met

Timeframes for chemical reviews
are met

(old process) 36%
(new process) 46%
No chemical reviews were due
for completion in 2015–16:
however, the review of
fenamiphos was completed
in July 2015

1.3.B

1.3.B

Source: APVMA corporate plan 2015–19, APVMA operational plan 2015–16, APVMA regulator performance framework
(RPF) 2015–16, 2015–16. *Also in Portfolio Budget Statement

Timeframes for products, actives and permits
The APVMA commenced assessment of 2510 applications for products, actives and permits and
finalised 2545 applications between July 2015 and June 2016. Of the 2545 product, active and
permit applications finalised, approximately 90.5 per cent were granted, with around 2.8 per cent
refused by the APVMA and 6.7 per cent of applications withdrawn by the applicants.
The timeframe performance for applications finalised was 68 per cent within timeframe for
the year.
Total product application timeframe performance was 66 per cent: pesticides 57 per cent, veterinary
medicines 80 per cent, and 70 per cent of applications for actives and permits were completed
within timeframe.
There was a significant improvement in timeframe performance for product applications over the
last quarter (April–June) of 2015–16 reaching 78 per cent completed within timeframe.
Quarterly performance against timeframes is published on our website under ‘Performance
statistics’ (apvma.gov.au/node/19741).

APPLICATION TYPE

COMMENCED

FINALISED
WITHIN
TIMEFRAME

FINALISED

IN PROGRESS
(END)

Pesticides

905

1029

57%

408

Veterinary
medicines

701

704

80%

316

1606

1733

66%

724

Actives

342

213

70%

289

Permits

562

599

70%

179

2510

2545

68%

1192

Products

Subtotal

Total

78%
66%

58%

63%

65%

85%

80%

74%

81%

57%

50%

49%

55%

72%

78%

Figure 3: Timeframe performance by application type, per quarter, 2015–16

% Finalised Q 1

Veterinary Medicines

Pesticides

% Finalised Q 2

Total

76%

% Finalised Q 4

68%

64%

64%

64%

70%

71%

81%
68%

61%

70%

75%

% Finalised Q 3

% Finalised Year to date

48%

74%

82%

Product Applications

Active Applications

Permit Applications
Others

Total Applications
Total

The overall timeframe performance for the year was negatively affected by higher than expected
unplanned staff leave in the September quarter, which caused backlogs for subsequent quarters.
However, performance improved significantly towards the end of the year as a result of:
nn the recruitment of staff to the registration management and evaluation program
nn new capacity and improvements to our internal applications management software that reduced
administrative burden on APVMA staff
nn improvements to work processes.
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Table 7: Product, active and permit applications processed by the APVMA 2015–16

Timeframe performance for import consents
The APVMA commenced assessment of 608 applications for import consents and finalised 620
applications between July 2015 and June 2016. Of the 620 applications finalised, 86 per cent were
granted within their target timeframe of 14 days for the year, and 98 per cent of applications were
issued with two per cent either refused or withdrawn by the applicant.

Table 8: Import consent applications processed by the APVMA 2015–16
QUARTER

RECEIVED

FINALISED

FINALISED WITHIN
TIMEFRAME (%)

ISSUED

IN
PROGRESS

1

150

147

89

144

37

2

115

128

96

126

10

3

138

133

96

130

6

4

205

212

71

205

8

Total

608

620

86

605 (98% of
applications
received)

61

600

100%

500

80%

400

60%

300
40%

200

20%

100
0

Q1

Q2

Q3
Timeframe
Received

Q4

2015–16

Proportion of import consents
finalised on time

Figure 4: Timeframe performance for import consents 2015–16
Number of import consents
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0%

Finalised within timeframe (%)

Timeframe performance for pre-application assistance
The APVMA received 175 applications for pre-application assistance, and finalised 145 applications
between July 2015 and June 2016. Of the 145 applications finalised, 41 per cent were granted
within their target timeframe.
Target timeframes changed during the year. For the period July–October 2015, the timeframe
was one month for all applications. Following feedback from industry and other stakeholders, the
APVMA undertook an independent review of the implementation and operation of pre-application
assistance arrangements. The review highlighted that the pre-application assistance did not meet
the standards required by our clients, and that we did not have adequate systems and processes in
place to support it effectively.

Table 9: Applications processed for pre-application assistance by the APVMA 2015–16
QUARTER

RECEIVED

FINALISED

WITHIN TIMEFRAME

1

48

38

39

2

33

37

38

3

63

27

77

4

31

43

23

175

145

41

Total

Compliance, enforcement and licensing performance
PERFORMANCE INDICATOR: Percentage of compliance and enforcement activities
completed within timeframes
METRIC

RESULTS

GMP audit program
implemented as per
APVMA-approved schedule

96 audits were completed
(16 more than the proposed program
of 80 audits)

RPF REFERENCE

1.3.B

80% of audits were completed within
timeframe and a further 9% within
one week of the due date—see
‘Performance statistics’(apvma.gov.au/
node/19741)
100% of statutory notices
issued by compliance are
gazetted in accordance with
legislative requirements

The APVMA issued one statutory
notice in 2015–16, which was gazetted
in accordance with legislative
requirements

1.3.B

Source: APVMA corporate plan 2015–19, APVMA operational plan 2015–16, APVMA regulator performance
framework 2015–16

GMP audits are run through an enforced self-regulation process in which manufacturers are
responsible for commissioning their own audits via an authorised auditor. Reminders of audits are
sent to manufacturers but audits may sometimes not occur on the due date due to factors such as
the unavailability of auditors or delays on the manufacturers’ part. In addition, the APVMA has less
control over the timeframe where the audit is undertaken by one of our national or international
regulatory partners, and some delays may occur.
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The APVMA subsequently re-designed the pre-application assistance arrangements to better
meet the needs of industry. The new arrangements commenced in November 2015 and now
include timeframes and fees that directly relate to the complexity and effort required. There are
three tiers of assistance and timeframes of one, two or three months, depending on the type of
assistance sought.
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Removing unnecessary impediments
As an operational regulator, the APVMA is committed to fulfilling its legislative obligations while
minimising the burden on the entities we regulate. We do that by understanding the environment
within which industry operates, using international data, guidelines and assessments where
available, and being as efficient as possible.

PERFORMANCE INDICATOR: Demonstrated understanding of the operating
environment for the regulated entities
METRIC

RESULTS

RPF REFERENCE

Four stakeholder forums
held each year to discuss
issues affecting regulated
entities

The APVMA held more than four
stakeholder forums and meetings with
key industry associations throughout
2015–16 to discuss operational and
other matters affecting agvet
chemical regulation

1.1.A

Three industry information
and training seminars
delivered each year

Three industry information and
education sessions were held:

1.1.B

nn Melbourne, August 2015
nn Canberra, October 2015
nn Melbourne, May 2016

Four industry awareness
workshops conducted by
APVMA staff each year

The APVMA conducted more than
four industry awareness sessions
and workshops throughout the year,
including a tailored workshop on the
lifecycle of product development, and
looking at the registration process from
the applicant’s perspective

1.1.C

Environmental scan
published annually

The environmental scan was published
as part of the APVMA operational plan
2016–17. See ‘Corporate documents’ at
(apvma.gov.au/node/11026)

1.1.D

Source: APVMA corporate plan 2015–19, APVMA operational plan 2015–16 and APVMA regulator performance
framework 2015–16

METRIC

RESULTS

Demonstrated application
of the policy for use of
international standards,
guidelines, assessments
and decisions

There were 492 international guidelines
adopted by the APVMA and published
on our website. These are available
at ‘Adopted international technical
guidance material—agricultural’
(apvma.gov.au/node/19991) and
‘Adopted international technical
guidance—veterinary’ (apvma.gov.au/
node/20056)

RPF REFERENCE

1.2.A

Two rounds of public consultation on
our policy on the use of international
standards, guidelines and decisions
were undertaken in 2015–16, and
implementation will be done in 2016–17
Participation in Global Joint
Reviews (GJRs)

Completed: oxathiapiprolin and
metacam

1.2.B

Ongoing: bicyclopyrone,
flupyradifurone and cyclaniliprole
100% of relevant
international standards
adopted for new chemical
products and chemical
review decisions

The APVMA is continuing to apply
international standards in risk
assessments undertaken for product
applications and chemical reviews

1.2.C

Documented justification
for the non-adoption of
international standards and
guidelines

There were no instances of nonadoption

1.2.D

Source: APVMA corporate plan 2015–19, APVMA operational plan 2015–16 and APVMA regulator performance
framework 2015–16
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PERFORMANCE INDICATOR: International data guidelines, standards and assessments
adopted to reduce effort to register agvet chemicals
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PERFORMANCE INDICATOR: APVMA business processes are efficient and effective
METRIC

RESULTS

Satisfaction with APVMA
online systems for
submitting and managing
applications

The APVMA conducted a useability
review of online systems in 2015–16
to better understand client needs and
to inform improvements to the user
experience

RPF REFERENCE

1.3.A

Recommendations from the review will
be delivered and prioritised in 2016–17
Regulatory decisions
are completed within
timeframes
Average decision time for
applications by item

The APVMA publishes quarterly
performance statistics on regulatory
decisions. See ‘Performance statistics’
(apvma.gov.au/node/19741)

1.3.B

Average decision time for applications:

1.3.C

nn products, 5.2 months
nn actives, 8.8 months
nn permits, 3.7 months

Average decision time
The APVMA assesses applications against 29 item numbers across several categories, including
product applications, actives and permits. The average decision time for each major category is
provided in Table 10.

Table 10: Average duration (months) by item finalised between
July 2015 – June 2016 for all post-1 July 2014 applications
STANDARD (MONTHS)

EXTENDED (MONTHS)

ACTUAL
AVERAGE
DURATION

ACTUAL
AVERAGE
DURATION

LEGISLATED
ASSESSMENT
PERIOD

LEGISLATED
ASSESSMENT
PERIOD

TYPE OF APPLICATION

ITEM

Products

New
product/
active

1

N/A*

18.0

N/A

25.0

2

9.8

Variable
(12.5*)

12.9

Variable
(14.7*)

New
product
(existing
active)

3

N/A

18.0

N/A

25.0

4

N/A

18.0

N/A

25.0

5

9.0

8.0

15.0

12.0

6

14.1

8.0

12.2

12.0

7

3.7

3.0

7.6

5.0

8

3.2

3.0

4.5

5.0

9

4.1

2.0

3.9

4.0

10

8.3

Variable
(7.4*)

8.6

Variable
(8.8*)

10A

2.1

Variable
(2.0*)

N/A

Variable
(N/A*)

11

13.7

10.0

21.7

15.0

12

3.3

3.0

6.4

5.0

13

2.2

3.0

N/A

5.0

13A

0.8

1.0

N/A

N/A

14

7.2

Variable
(6.7*)

10.3

Variable
(10.8*)

Variations

N/A – no applications were received for that item in the reporting period.
* Some items have a variable legislated assessment period because they are modular in nature. Each individual
application will have a different expected duration. The figure in brackets after the variable text shows the average
expected timeframe for these items in this reporting period. This average expected timeframe may change each
reporting period, depending on the nature of the applications evaluated by the APVMA.
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Table 10: Average duration (months) by item finalised between
July 2015 – June 2016 for all post-1 July 2014 applications (continued)
STANDARD (MONTHS)

EXTENDED (MONTHS)

ACTUAL
AVERAGE
DURATION

ACTUAL
AVERAGE
DURATION

LEGISLATED
ASSESSMENT
PERIOD

LEGISLATED
ASSESSMENT
PERIOD

TYPE OF APPLICATION

ITEM

Actives

15

N/A

14.0

N/A

20.0

16

10.7

9.0

N/A

13.0

17

6.9

7.0

10.0

11.0

18

5.6

7.0

10.5

11.0

19

2.3

3.0

2.6

5.0

20

2.4

3.0

4.2

5.0

21

5.2

Variable
(5.0*)

9.3

Variable
(8.8*)

22

1.1

Variable
(2.9*)

N/A

Variable

23

3.3

Variable
(4.1*)

7.4

Variable
(7.1*)

112A

0.5

Variable
(0.0*)

N/A

Variable

Permits

N/A – no applications were received for that item in the reporting period.
* Some items have a variable legislated assessment period because they are modular in nature. Each individual
application will have a different expected duration. The figure in brackets after the variable text shows the average
expected timeframe for these items in this reporting period. This average expected timeframe may change each
reporting period, depending on the nature of the applications evaluated by the APVMA.

In 2015–16, the APVMA employed Oakton, APVMA’s external auditors, to run an independent
analysis of how long it takes us to complete a product application from the date it is received
within the organisation to the date it is finalised.
The consultancy reviewed and compared data for product applications processed within the
APVMA under the previous legislation (1 July 2011 to 30 June 2014) to product applications
processed under the current legislation (1 July 2014 to 31 March 2016).
Two aspects of performance were considered:
nn proportion of product applications finalised on time using the current ‘elapsed time’ method
nn average time in months to finalise an application using the current ‘elapsed time’ method.
A summary of the results provided in the table below shows large improvements in both
timeframe performance and average time to finalise after the introduction of the new
legislation in July 2014. The report found that:
nn if the same methodology used today was applied to applications prior to 2014, the
proportion of applications finalised on time would drop from 91 per cent to 33 per cent.
(The APVMA has averaged 69 per cent since 2014)
nn the actual (or ‘elapsed’) time the APVMA takes to finalise applications has decreased by
70% since before 2014.

Table 11: Analysis of time to complete a product application
1 JULY 2011 –
30 JUNE 2014

1 JULY 2014 –
31 MARCH 2016

Proportion finalised on time (timeframe performance)
‘Clock time’

91%

-

‘Elapsed time’

33%

69%

Average time to finalise from lodgement
‘Clock time’

3.1 months

-

‘Elapsed time’

7.8 months

4.6 months

7941

1806

Number of applications
processed
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Communication
The APVMA recognises the importance of communicating well with the entities we deal with in the
course of performing our functions. We have a strong commitment to stakeholder consultation and
we strive to improve the quality of our information, guidance materials and advice on regulatory
decisions.

PERFORMANCE INDICATOR: Level of satisfaction with information and guidance
materials
METRIC

RESULTS

Feedback from
stakeholders about the
quality of guidance material

There is a feedback mechanism on
every web page containing guidance
material

RPF REFERENCE

2.1.A

All feedback is assessed and referred to
business owners for action
A useability review will be completed
in 2016–17 and recommendations
will inform further improvement to
guidance material
100% of website content is
reviewed by the nominated
review date

Individual pages and sections of our
website were updated as required

Usage of APVMA website

There were approximately 180 000
unique visitors to the APVMA website
in 2015–16 and almost 2 million hits on
the chemicals database

2.1.C

Number of subscribers
to the APVMA regulatory
update

Almost 3000 subscribers are receiving
the APVMA regulatory update by email

2.1.D

Website meets relevant
Australian Government
online and accessibility
standards

An online usability review conducted in
June 2016 confirmed that the APVMA
website (apvma.gov.au) is substantially
compliant with Australian government
online and accessibility standards

2.1.E

2.1.B

A content management system is in
place and full automation to prompt
business owners to review content will
be operational in early 2016–17

Source: APVMA corporate plan 2015–19, APVMA operational plan 2015–16 and APVMA regulator performance
framework 2015–16

METRIC

RESULTS

RPF REFERENCE

Feedback about the
quality of pre-application
assistance

Of the voluntary feedback received on
the pre-application assistance process:
90% of applicants were satisfied with
the clarity of advice provided

2.2.A

Customer service
standards met

The APVMA enquiries team received
around 10 000 calls and 12 000 emails
in 2015–16

2.2.B

The APVMA implemented a help desk
tool in 2015–16 to enable tracking
and monitoring of email enquiries.
The tracking tool provides the status
of each enquiry and monitors response
times against the service standards
Phone messages were checked daily
by the enquiries team and return calls
were made within the one-day standard
An account manager model will be
implemented in 2016–17 to further
improve customer standards
100% of correspondence
provided to applicants and
registrants assessed as
comprehensive and easily
understood

A correspondence improvement
project began in 2015–16 with a full
audit of all outgoing letters, notices
and emails

2.2.C

Feedback from multiple sources
and the recent useablity review
confirms there is significant scope
for improvement, and has identified
priority products for action
Implementation of improved
correspondence products will
commence in 2016–17

Source: APVMA corporate plan 2015–19, APVMA operational plan 2015–16 and APVMA regulator performance
framework 2015–16

A new customer relationship management tool is expected to be implemented in 2016–17, which
will support regular reporting. This will improve the experience for applicants and registrants and
will enable more quantitative measurement of customer service standards.
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PERFORMANCE INDICATOR: Extent and satisfaction with APVMA consultative processes
METRIC

RESULTS

RPF REFERENCE

100% of new or major
changes to operational
policies or guidelines
provided to relevant
stakeholders for
consultation prior to
finalisation

The APVMA consulted on all major
changes to operational policy and
guidelines prior to finalisation

2.3.A

Feedback from key industry
stakeholders about the
quality of significant
APVMA consultation

There is an opportunity for feedback
to be provided during all public
consultations as part of the submission
process

2.3.B

Feedback can also be provided
generally via the website and in
response to targeted consultation and
industry meetings
The APVMA did not receive concerns
about the quality of consultation on
major changes that were the subject of
public consultation in 2015–16
Source: APVMA corporate plan 2015–19, APVMA operational plan 2015–16 and APVMA regulator performance
framework 2015–16

The APVMA undertook public consultation on a number of proposed changes to operational policy
and development of guidelines in 2015–16, including:
nn redesign of the pre-application assistance framework in conjunction with industry to provide
greater certainty for applicants on requirements
nn adoption and use of international standards, guidelines, assessments and data with specific
guidance material developed for both agricultural and veterinary chemicals
nn establishing a pilot for applicants to source efficacy assessments prior to application to trial
increased contestability in assessments
nn prioritising chemicals nominated for review in consideration of current scientific data and
information to establish the forward work program
nn establishment of crop groupings to support improved access to chemicals for minor use
nn updating data guidelines on dairy sanitisers, aquatic exposure and teat disinfectants to improve
guidance for industry
nn scheduling and management of good manufacturing practice audits to provide increased
flexibility for manufacturers.

Approaches to regulatory risk
The APVMA is focused on exploring ways to reduce the regulatory effort in relation to registration
and compliance to ensure the resources of industry and the regulator are best targeted. We aim to
have clear risk management frameworks, we actively seek to take a lower regulatory approach to
registration and we take a risk-based approach to compliance.

PERFORMANCE INDICATOR: Risk management frameworks and policies are in place
and regularly assessed
METRIC

RESULTS

RPF REFERENCE

Documented compliance
and enforcement strategy,
including options for
graduated compliance,
in place

The compliance and enforcement
strategy, which is underpinned by a
risk-based approach is available under
‘Corporate documents’ (apvma.gov.au/
node/11026)

3.1.B

Risk frameworks reviewed
every three years

The APVMA undertakes continuous
improvement of its risk frameworks

3.1.C

Risk framework applied
to registration decision
and made accessible to
regulated entities*

A conceptual risk assessment
framework was developed in December
2015 and discussed with industry at
APVMA-run industry sessions

3.1.A

In consultation with industry, the
APVMA will undertake a staged
implementation of the framework
Source: APVMA corporate plan 2015–19, APVMA operational plan 2015–16 and APVMA regulator performance
framework 2015–16. (*Only RPF)

The APVMA is continuing to look at ways to reduce regulatory burden on industry when submitting
applications for the registration of agvet chemicals. The goal is to develop new and more efficient
registration processes, and the following initiatives fall within the scope of this work:
nn profiling applications to identify those suitable for a low regulatory approach
nn identifying alternative pathways for registration and approval of these applications
nn using international assessments to streamline the scientific assessment process
nn exploring contestable assessment services.
The APVMA has developed a plan for gradually introducing these alternative, more efficient
pathways over the next two years. Further information on these initiatives are detailed on the
APVMA website.
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PERFORMANCE INDICATOR: Lower regulatory effort is applied to activities of lower
regulatory risk
METRIC

RESULTS

RPF REFERENCE

100% of applications
assessed as low regulatory
risk processed according
to risk-based assessment
framework tools and
mechanisms

The APVMA is continuing to explore
alternative regulatory mechanisms and
processes to reduce regulatory burden
on industry

3.2.A

Documented approaches
in place to review level of
regulatory effort applied to
agvet chemical registration
and approval

Reports and progress updates for
the lower regulatory approaches
to registration project are available
at ‘Lower regulatory approaches
to registration’ (apvma.gov.au/
node/20291)

3.2.B

Source: APVMA corporate plan 2015–19, APVMA operational plan 2015–16 and APVMA regulator performance
framework 2015–16

PERFORMANCE INDICATOR: Compliance and enforcement strategies are consistent
with agreed risk management policies
METRIC

RESULTS

RPF REFERENCE

Compliance and
enforcement strategy to
be accessible to regulated
entities

The compliance and enforcement
strategy, which was released on
25 February 2016, is available under
‘Corporate documents’
(apvma.gov.au/node/11026)

3.3.A

100% of allegations of
non-compliance assessed
and/or investigated
according to APVMA
compliance and
enforcement strategy

100% of allegations have been assessed
or investigated under this strategy

3.3.B

100% of compliance
allegations are riskassessed prior to the start
of enquires

100% of the 204 allegations received
during 2015–16 were risk-assessed as
follows:

NA

nn 75% low risk
nn 24% medium risk
nn 1% high risk

Documented policy for
determining GMP audit
schedules to be accessible
by regulated entities

The GMP audit policy is available at
‘Risk-based scheduling of GMP audits’
(apvma.gov.au/node/19701)

3.3.C

Source: APVMA corporate plan 2015–19, APVMA operational plan 2015–16 and APVMA regulator performance
framework 2015–16

Compliance and monitoring
Compliance and monitoring is an important component of the APVMA’s work to maintain and
build the integrity of the regulatory system for agvet chemicals. We ensure that there is a range
of regulatory responses that can be tailored to each circumstance, we are responsive to business
needs and we do not create duplication or unnecessary impost on the entities we regulate.

PERFORMANCE INDICATOR: Monitoring and enforcement strategies allow for a range
of regulatory responses
METRIC

RESULTS

100% of allegations of
non-compliance are
risk-assessed and
prioritised within five
working days

100% assessed on time:

Usage of compliance
tools

RPF REFERENCE

4.1.A

nn 79% of non-compliance cases were
assessed as low risk with resolution
achieved through education and
negotiated compliance
nn 1 statutory notice

4.1.B

nn 6 formal warnings
nn 2 infringement notices (totalling $27 000)
nn 1 investigative warrant
nn 230 cases of non-compliance resolved

Source: APVMA corporate plan 2015–19, APVMA operational plan 2015–16 and APVMA regulator performance
framework 2015–16

PERFORMANCE INDICATOR: Compliance activities are responsive to business needs of
regulated entities, where relevant
METRIC

RESULTS

100% of audit and
inspection schedules
designed to minimise
overlap with audits
from other government
regulators

100% of audits designed to minimise overlap.
The APVMA coordinates audits with the:

RPF REFERENCE

4.2.A

nn Therapeutic Goods Administration
for 60 veterinary product manufacturers
nn National Association of Testing Authorities
Australia for 10 manufacturers
nn international government regulators of
overseas sites importing products to
Australia

Evidence of
compliance activities
conducted jointly with
other regulators

nn 17 compliance-related activities
collaboratively undertaken with the
Australian Border Force

4.2.B

nn Six evidentiary certificates provided to
state regulators
nn Joint GMP audits not yet started

Source: APVMA corporate plan 2015–19, APVMA operational plan 2015–16 and APVMA regulator performance
framework 2015–16
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PERFORMANCE INDICATOR: Information requested from regulated entities is necessary
and acted upon
METRIC

RESULTS

Average number of
formal requests for
information (including
notices) provided for each
registration application

In 2015–16:

RPF REFERENCE

4.3.A

nn 509 first notices were issued based
on processing approximately 2500
applications in 2015–16.
nn 58 second notices were issued

Average number of
compliance-related
requests for information
(including coercive
notices) for each
compliance action
involving interaction with
a regulated entity

An average of three requests for
information

Evidence demonstrates
consideration of
alternative means of
information gathering
before coercive
information gathering
powers are exercised
during investigations into
compliance of regulated
entities

Alternative approaches are included
in delegate briefs

4.3.B

NA

Source: APVMA corporate plan 2015–19, APVMA operational plan 2015–16 and APVMA regulator performance
framework 2015–16

Transparency
The APVMA is committed to being open and transparent with the entities it regulates. We actively
seek feedback from clients and we publish a range of information to ensure stakeholders are fully
informed of our performance.

PERFORMANCE CRITERIA: Performance information is published
RESULTS

Timeframe performance
statistics published
quarterly

Statistics published as follows:

RPF REFERENCE

5.1.A

nn Q1 and Q2 published in
February 2016
nn Q3 published in June 2016—see
‘Performance statistics’
(apvma.gov.au/node/19741)

Performance against
customer service
standards published
quarterly

The APVMA enquiries team received
around 10 000 calls and 12 000 emails
in 2015–16

5.1.B

The APVMA implemented a help desk
tool in 2015–16 to enable tracking and
monitoring of email enquiries
The tracking tool provides the status
of each enquiry and monitors response
times against the service standards
Phone messages were checked daily by
the enquiries team and return calls were
made within the one-day standard

Performance against RPF
published annually

Performance against the RPF is
cross-referenced in this annual report

5.1.C

The annual report against the RPF
is scheduled to be published by the
APVMA in late 2016
100% of decisions to
approve or register an
agvet chemical published
within 10 working days of
decision being made

nn 100% achieved

100% of enforceable
undertakings accepted by
the APVMA are published
within 30 days

Not applicable — no enforceable
undertakings issued

5.1.D

nn All decisions to approve or register
an agvet chemical are published
every fortnight in the gazette, and
can be viewed on our product search
database the day after the decision
is made
NA

Source: APVMA corporate plan 2015–19, APVMA operational plan 2015–16 and APVMA regulator performance
framework 2015–16
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The delay in publishing the first quarter performance statistics was due to changes in our internal
software systems, and to difficulty in extracting the information in a timely manner. Because of this
delay, we published the first and second quarter information together in February 2016.
The customer enquiry system did not include the functionality to publish quarterly data for 2015–16.

PERFORMANCE INDICATOR: Feedback mechanisms are in place and used to improve
service delivery to regulated entities
METRIC

RESULTS

RPF REFERENCE

Demonstrated process
to collect stakeholder
feedback

An online feedback mechanism is
in place to enable users to report
problems, suggest improvements,
lodge complaints and provide
feedback via the APVMA website

5.2.A

100% of feedback
received through the
online feedback system
is assessed within five
working days

Feedback is monitored and assessed
daily and referred for action as
required

5.2.B

Source: APVMA corporate plan 2015–19, APVMA operational plan 2015–16 and APVMA regulator performance
framework 2015–16

Enhancing the regulatory system
PERFORMANCE INDICATOR: Feedback is provided to inform the development or
amendment of regulatory frameworks
METRIC

RESULTS

Documented procedures
in place to facilitate
engagement with the
Department of Agriculture
and Water Resources and
relevant state and territory
agencies

The APVMA and the Department
of Agriculture and Water Resources
meet monthly to discuss ongoing
operational matters and proposed
reforms

RPF REFERENCE

6.2.A

The APVMA attended three reform
sessions with industry hosted by the
department in Canberra, Sydney and
Melbourne
The APVMA has regular contact with
state and territory coordinators for
registration, permit issue and chemical
review activities
We held two face-to-face workshops
with relevant state and territory
agencies regarding chemical review
prioritisation and ongoing operational
matters
The APVMA hosted a forum for state
and territory coordinators to discuss
regulatory approaches

Source: APVMA corporate plan 2015–19, APVMA operational plan 2015–16 and APVMA regulator performance
framework 2015–16

PERFORMANCE INDICATOR: Level of stakeholder engagement in implementing
regulatory frameworks
METRIC

RESULTS

RPF REFERENCE

Documented stakeholder
consultation procedures
in place

Documented procedures for
consultation on the registration or
reconsideration of or amendments to
active constituents, chemical products,
MRLs and Standards are in place

6.1.A

100% of significant
changes to APVMA
regulatory frameworks
involve stakeholder
consultation

There were no significant changes to
APVMA regulatory frameworks in
2015–16

6.1.B

Source: APVMA corporate plan 2015–19, APVMA operational plan 2015–16 and APVMA regulator performance
framework 2015–16
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One of the keys to APVMA’s success lies in the calibre of its regulatory scientists. The APVMA has a
strong focus on improving its regulatory science capability.

PERFORMANCE INDICATOR: Improvements in regulatory science capability are
consistent with agreed priorities and strategies
METRIC

RESULTS

RPF REFERENCE

Documented science
strategy

The APVMA science strategy is
available under ‘Corporate documents’
(apvma.gov.au/node/11026)

NA

Regulatory science
activities are aligned with
relevant activities of similar
regulators

The APVMA aligned its activities with
other regulators by:

NA

nn participating in the Australian
Regulatory Science Network (RSN),
and relevant working groups and
committees
nn engaging with international
regulatory authorities and
participating in global
harmonisation activities of expert
advisory bodies, including the
OECD and VICH

Regulatory science
communication to external
stakeholders improved by
provision of targeted webbased information

Science pages on the APVMA website
enable information sharing, awareness
raising, and greater transparency—
building confidence in the quality of
our science and our scientists. See
‘Our science’
(apvma.gov.au/node/15486)

NA

Three staff seminars
completed on regulatory
science issues, including
risk assessment
methodologies and new
technologies

Staff seminars included:

NA

nn a training session on veterinary
therapies for the treatment of
mastitis
nn a roundtable on bioequivalence,
held with Professor Jim E
Riviere, Director at the Institute
of Computational Comparative
Medicine, Purdue University, USA
nn a symposium held with the CSIRO
on the use of gene drive technology
in controlling pests and diseases
nn a neonicotinoids and pollinators
seminar

RESULTS

Regulatory science
projects undertaken
according to agreed
timeframes

Regulatory science projects
undertaken in agreed timeframes in
2015–16 included:

RPF REFERENCE

NA

nn public consultations on:
–

aquatic exposure modelling

–

dryland cropping component

–

bee risk assessment guidance

nn completion of both risk profiling
of imported live micro-organisms
for use in veterinary vaccines, and
pharmaceutical equivalence
nn the scoping approaches for
assessing fumigants was stopped
due to competing priorities
nn more information is in Appendix A,
page 94
Source: APVMA corporate plan 2015–19, APVMA operational plan 2015–16

High-performing organisation
The APVMA is staffed by a team of highly qualified people, all focused on ensuring agvet chemicals
are safe to use. Ensuring that our workforce is motivated and trained and that our systems can
underpin an efficient and effective business is a high priority.

PERFORMANCE INDICATOR: Motivated and trained workforce
METRIC

RESULTS

RPF REFERENCE

Absenteeism rate at or
below Australian Public
Service (APS) average

The APVMA unscheduled absence
rate was 13.2 days per full-time
employee, which was above the
APS average of 11.6

NA

Adherence to the code of
conduct

Following investigation and
determination, one APVMA staff
member was found to have breached
the APS Code of Conduct in the
2015–16 financial year

NA

Number of corporate
training days per full-time
equivalent (FTE)

During the 2015–16 financial year, staff
participation in training averaged 5.1
training days per FTE

NA
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METRIC

RESULTS

80% of recruitment
processes completed
within 45 days

35% achieved

Ensure our people have
the skills to do their job

The Training Advisory Group,
comprising representatives across
all program areas, was established
to identify and discuss learning and
development needs for staff.

RPF REFERENCE

NA

A total of 46 recruitment processes
were completed in 2015–16
NA

Training has been delivered on a
range of topics, including scientific
analysis, use of spreadsheets, legal
administration, leadership and
management principles
Source: APVMA corporate plan 2015–19, APVMA operational plan 2015–16

Absenteeism rate
Absenteeism was higher during 2015–16 than previous years, which was largely due to long-term
non-compensable absences affecting a small number of APVMA staff. These absences were actively
managed and support was provided to affected staff.

Recruitment activities
Recruitment activities were higher during 2015–16 year than previous years. Delays were
experienced in progressing and finalising a number of processes for a range of reasons, such as
selection panel member availability and candidate availability.

PERFORMANCE INDICATOR: Efficient and effective business processes and financial
management systems in place
METRIC

RESULTS

No significant findings
from internal and external
audits

Six internal audits were conducted
during the year

RPF REFERENCE

NA

No findings from these audits were
considered significant by internal
auditors or the audit committee
An external audit of the 2015–16
financial statements did not result in
any findings deemed significant by the
auditors or the audit committee

Audited financial
statements cleared by
due date

The audited financial statements
were cleared and lodged with the
Department of Finance by the due
date of 31 August 2016

NA

RESULTS

RPF REFERENCE

Sound budget
management

Total expenditure for 2015–16 was
within 3% of the initial budget
published in the Portfolio Budget
Statements

No preventable health
and safety incidents
requiring notification to
the regulator, Comcare

No incidents requiring notification to
Comcare arose during the reporting
period

NA

Equity reserve targets
managed

The APVMA’s equity level at 30 June
2016 was $7.3 million, which is above
the target of $7.0 million

NA

Comply with government
reporting requirements,
legislation and standards

All government reporting requirements
were complied with

NA

Statement of
comprehensive
income

Source: APVMA corporate plan 2015–19, APVMA operational plan 2015–16

PERFORMANCE INDICATOR: Protect and manage information and enhance information
technology to improve service delivery and staff capability
METRIC

RESULTS

Maintain IT system
uptime to 97% or greater

98.6% system uptime with:

RPF REFERENCE

NA

nn one high-severity incident
(24 hours downtime)
nn <10 minor outages
(<2 hours downtime)

No significant security
incidents

No significant security incidents
occurred

NA

Cyber intrusions defeated
before damage occurs

The APVMA receives an average of 70
cyber intrusion attempts per month

NA

100% of cyber intrusion attempts were
defeated before damage occurred
Virus attacks defeated
before damage occurs

The APVMA blocks an average of
300 000 malicious email messages per
month
On average, 500 of these are identified
as virus attacks
100% of virus attacks were defeated
before damage occurred

Source: APVMA corporate plan 2015–19, APVMA operational plan 2015–16

NA
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S u m m ar y o f finan ci al
pe rf o rmanc e
Tables 9–12 give an overview of APVMA financial performance for 2015–16. Full details are in the
audited financial statements on the following pages.

Income
Our total income for this financial year was $30.546 million (Table 12), an increase of $0.805 million
(2.71 per cent) from the previous year.

Table 12: Income 2015–16
INCOME SOURCE

INCOME ($’000)

%

Receipts from industry
Application fees

5 334

17.46

16 702

54.68

Annual fees (renewal fees)

4 984

16.31

Other receipts from industry

2 495

8.17

Parliamentary appropriation

732

2.40

Other revenue

299

0.98

30 546

100.00

Levies

Total income

Table 13: Agency resourcing statement 2015–16
ACTUAL
AVAILABLE
APPROPRIATION
FOR 2015–16
($’000)

PAYMENTS
MADE IN
2015–16
($’000)

BALANCE
REMAINING
IN 2015–16
($’000)

Ordinary annual services
Prior year reserves

14 715

14 715

–

Departmental appropriations

732

732

–

Revenue from independent
sources (s. 31)

302

302

–

Total

15 749

15 749

–

Special appropriation

34 291

21 883

10 408

Total resourcing and payments

48 040

37 632

10 408

– = nil

Expenditure
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Table 14: Expenditure 2015–16 (including comparison with PBS)
2015–16
ACTUAL
EXPENDITURE
($’000)

% OF
EXPENDITURE

2015–16
BUDGET
(PER PBS)
($’000)

Employee benefits

22 984

67.89

22 377

Supplier expenses

9 353

27.63

9 200

Depreciation

1 501

4.43

1 362

17

0.05

–

33 855

100.00

32 939

Other
Total expenditure
– = nil; PBS = Portfolio Budget Statement

Table 15: Expenses for Outcome 1
OUTCOME 1:
PROTECTION OF THE HEALTH
AND SAFETY OF PEOPLE,
ANIMALS, THE ENVIRONMENT, AND AGRICULTURAL
AND LIVESTOCK INDUSTRIES
THROUGH REGULATION OF
PESTICIDES AND VETERINARY
MEDICINES

2015–16
BUDGET
($’000)

2015–16
ACTUAL
($’000)

2015–16
VARIANCE
($’000)

2014–15
ACTUAL
($’000)

Ordinary annual services
(Appropriation Bill 1)

732

732

–

743

Revenue from independent
sources (s. 31)

488

299

189

557

Special appropriation

31 719

32 824

-1 105

31 904

Total expenses for Outcome 1

32 939

33 855

-916

33 204

Program 1.1 (APVMA)
Department expenses

– = nil

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

Total operating expenses for 2015–16 were $ 33.855 million (Table 14), an increase of $ 0.651 million
(1.96 per cent) from the previous year.
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Equity
The APVMA recorded a net operating deficit of $3.178 million for 2015–16. This was primarily
because 2015–16 was a transition year in which the APVMA was required to run two registration
systems. Our equity at 30 June 2016 was $7.312 million.

Audit results
The APVMA achieved an unqualified audit result and there were no adverse findings.

Financial reserve
Our revenue can vary significantly from year to year because of fluctuations in sales of pesticides
and veterinary medicines due to changing environmental conditions. To manage this, we aim to
hold a financial reserve, which forms part of our equity. Without this financial reserve, we would risk
periods where our liabilities would exceed our assets (negative equity).
The financial reserve is based on three months of operating expenses and is currently set at
$7.0 million.

Consultancies
In 2015–16, we entered into 14 new consultancy contracts involving total actual expenditure
(including capitalisation) of $484 000. In addition, 27 ongoing consultancy contracts were active this
year, involving total actual expenditure of $424 000.
Selection processes are described in terms drawn from the Commonwealth procurement
guidelines. ‘Direct sourcing’ refers to a selection process in which neither a tender nor a panel was
used. In these situations, we obtained multiple quotes, the number of which was determined by the
value of the procurement.
APVMA Finance Procedure 4, ‘Purchasing’, outlines the number of quotes required:

Table 16: Purchasing—number of quotes required
Purchase of goods/services

to $2000

1 quote

Purchase of goods/services

$2001 to $10 000

2 written quotes

Purchase of goods/services

$10 001 to $100 000

3 written quotes

Purchase of goods/services

$100 001 to $400 000

high-value procurement
procedures

Purchase of goods/services

$400 000 and over

tender

Exemptions to these requirements may be approved in some circumstances.
Annual reports contain information about actual expenditure on contracts for consultancies.
Information on the value of contracts and consultancies is available on the AusTender website.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Minister for Agriculture and Water Resources
I have audited the accompanying annual financial statements of the Australian Pesticides and
Veterinary Medicines Authority for the year ended 30 June 2016, which comprise:







Statement by the Accountable Authority and the Chief Financial Officer;
Statement of Comprehensive Income;
Statement of Financial Position;
Statement of Changes in Equity;
Cash Flow Statement; and
Notes to the financial statements.

Opinion
In my opinion, the financial statements of the Australian Pesticides and Veterinary Medicines
Authority:
(a) comply with Australian Accounting Standards and the Public Governance,
Performance and Accountability (Financial Reporting) Rule 2015; and
(b) present fairly the financial position of the Australian Pesticides and Veterinary
Medicines Authority as at 30 June 2016 and its financial performance and cash
flows for the year then ended.
Accountable Authority’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
The Chief Executive the Australian Pesticides and Veterinary Medicines Authority is
responsible under the Public Governance, Performance and Accountability Act 2013 for the
preparation and fair presentation of annual financial statements that comply with Australian
Accounting Standards and the rules made under that Act and is also responsible for such
internal control as the Chief Executive determines is necessary to enable the preparation and
fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.
Auditor’s Responsibility
My responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial statements based on my audit. I
have conducted my audit in accordance with the Australian National Audit Office Auditing
Standards, which incorporate the Australian Auditing Standards. These auditing standards
require that I comply with relevant ethical requirements relating to audit engagements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free from material misstatement.

GPO Box 707 CANBERRA ACT 2601
19 National Circuit BARTON ACT
Phone (02) 6203 7300 Fax (02) 6203 7777

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

55

A P V M A A N N U A L R E P O R T 2 0 1 5–1 6

56

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

57

A P V M A A N N U A L R E P O R T 2 0 1 5–1 6

58

Australian Pesticides and Veterinary Medicines Authority
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
for the year ended 30 June 2016

Notes
NET COST OF SERVICES
Expenses
Employee benefits
Suppliers
Depreciation and amortisation
Finance costs
Losses from asset sales

1.1A
1.1B
2.2A

A

Total Expenses

2016
$'000

2015
$'000

Original
Budget
2016
$'000

22 984
9 353
1 501
17
-

22 113
9 861
1 203
17
10

22 377
9 200
1 362
-

33 855

33 204

32 939

291
291

557
557

343
343

8
8

-

-

299

557

343

33 556

32 647

32 596

30 247

29 184

31 596

(3 309)

(3 463)

(1 000)

Own-Source Income
Own-source revenue
Other revenue
Total own-source revenue
Gains
Gains from asset sales
Total gains

1.2A

Total Own-Source Income
Net Cost of Services

A

3

A
IARevenue from Government

1.2C

Surplus/(Deficit) Attributable to the Australian Government
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Items not subject to subsequent reclassification to profit and loss
Change in asset revaluation surplus

2.2A

Equity injection following restructure to a corporate
Commonwealth entity
Total other comprehensive income
Total Comprehensive Income/(Loss) Attributable to the Australian
Government

131
-

5 155

-

131

5 155

-

(3 178)

1 692

(1 000)

The above statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
for the year ended 30 June 2016
Budget Variance Commentary:
Commentary is provided for major variances between the actual amounts and the original budget. Variances are considered to be ‘major’ (or
significant) where:
(a) for items in the Statement of Financial Postiton, the variance between budget and actual is greater than +/-10% of the budget and
greater than $250,000 for the line item; or
(b) for items in the Statement of Comprehensive Income, the variance between budget and actual is greater than +/-2% of expenses.
Variance explanations will also be provided where there have been major changes to business activities that may not be numerically material
but by nature may assist users in understanding underlying business changes that may have occurred since the original budget was released.
Where a revised budget has been presented to Parliament, the (entity) may include variance explanations of major variances between the
revised budget and actual amounts where they are considered relevant to an assessment of the discharge of accountability and to an
analysis of the performance of the (entity).
Statement of Comprehensive Income
Depreciation and amortisation is 10.2% above budget as the APVMA has continue with the significant investment in internally developed
software (intangibles) to support the on-going reforms to the APVMA's activites.
Employee benefits are 2.7% above budget largely due to a increase in leave provisions following a decrease in the 10-year bond rate. This
increase, together with minor increases in supplier expenses and finance costs, resulted in an $0.916 million (2.78%) increase in total
expenses compared to budget.
Revenue from Government is $1.349 million below budget due to lower than anticipated fees and charges paid by industry.
Lower income and higher expenditure result in a deficit that is $2.309 million higher than budget.
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Australian Pesticides and Veterinary Medicines Authority
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
as at 30 June 2016

2016
$'000

2015
$'000

Original
Budget
2016
$'000

1 384
9 884

1 289
13 666

219
15 814

11 268

14 955

16 033

1 478
784
5 704
415

1 769
761
4 292
283

2 172
679
3 474
306

8 381

7 105

6 631

19 649

22 060

22 664

5 062
912

3 848
1 689

4 098
6 220

5 974

5 537

10 318

5 891
472

5 578
455

6 842
456

Total provisions

6 363

6 033

7 298

Total Liabilities

12 337

11 570

17 616

7 312

10 490

5 048

EQUITY
Contributed equity
Retained surplus
Reserves

5 528
530
1 254

5 528
3 839
1 123

373
3 552
1 123

Total Equity

7 312

10 490

5 048

Notes
ASSETS
Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Trade and other receivables

2.1A
2.1B

Total financial assets
Non-Financial Assets
A
Leasehold improvements
Property, plant and equipment
Intangibles
Other non-financial assets

7

2.2A
2.2A
2.2A
2.2B

Total non-financial assets
ATotal Assets

LIABILITIES
Payables
Suppliers
A
Other payables

8

2.3A
2.3B

Total payables
Provisions
Employee provisions
Other provisions

4.1A
2.4A

A
I Net Assets

The above statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
as at 30 June 2016
Budget Variance Commentary:
Statement of Financial Position
Cash and cash equivalents (asset) and suppliers (liability) are above budget due to the timing of a drawdown of cash and subsequent
payment of suppliers. The cash drawdown occurred just before 30 June 2016 but the payment of suppliers occurred after.
Trade and other receivables (primarily the receivable with the Department of Agriculture and Water Resources) is below budget partially due
to the cash drawdown mentioned above as well as a greater level of funds being spent to internally developed software (intangibles). These
additonal funds were used to develop a greater level of enhancements to the APVMA portals than was initial budgeted for.
Leasehold improvements is below the forecast amount due to the delay in conducting signficant fitout upgrades to the APVMA's office in
Symonston ACT.
The $5.279 million difference in total liabilities is largely due to the difference in other payables ($5.308 million). This difference is due to the
treatment of the annual renewal fee. Prior to 1 July 2014, as an FMA agency, the APVMA recognised any annual renewal fees received prior
to the year end as income in advance. When the 2015-16 PBS was prepared, it was assumed that the annual fee would continue to be
treated in this manner. However, the re-classification of the APVMA as a corporate Commonwealth entity has meant that the annual
renewal income is recorded as income when received.
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Australian Pesticides and Veterinary Medicines Authority
STATEMENT IN CHANGES IN EQUITY
as at 30 June 2016

Notes

2016
$'000

2015
$'000

Original
Budget
2016
$'000

CONTRIBUTED EQUITY
Opening Balance
Balance brought forward from previous period

5 528

373

373

Adjusted opening balance

5 528

373

373

7

-

5 155
5 155

-

8

5 528

5 528

373

A
ATransactions with owners

Contributions by owners
Equity injections
Total transactions with owners

AClosing balance as at 30 June

7

RETAINED SURPLUS
Opening Balance
Balance brought forward from previous period

3 839

7 302

4 552

Adjusted opening balance

3 839

7 302

4 552

( 3 309)
( 3 309)

( 3 463)
( 3 463)

( 1 000)
( 1 000)

530

3 839

3 552

AComprehensive income

7

A
AClosing balance as at 30 June

8

Surplus/(Deficit) for the period
Total comprehensive income

ASSET REVALUATION RESERVE
Opening Balance
Balance brought forward from previous period

1 123

1 123

1 123

Adjusted opening balance

1 123

1 123

1 123

131
131

-

-

1 254

1 123

1 123

AComprehensive income

7

A
AClosing balance as at 30 June

8

Other comprehensive income
Total comprehensive income

2.2A

TOTAL EQUITY
Opening Balance
A
Balance brought forward from previous period

10 490

8 798

6 048

10 490

8 798

6 048

( 3 309)
131
( 3 178)

( 3 463)
( 3 463)

( 1 000)
( 1 000)

7

-

5 155
5 155

-

8

7 312

10 490

5 048

Adjusted opening balance
AComprehensive income

7

ATransactions with owners

7

Surplus/(Deficit) for the period
Other comprehensive income
Total comprehensive income

Contributions by owners
Equity injections
Total transactions with owners

A
IAClosing balance as at 30 June

The above statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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STATEMENT IN CHANGES IN EQUITY
as at 30 June 2016

Accounting Policy
Equity Injections
Amounts appropriated which are designated as ‘equity injections’ for a year (less any formal reductions) and Departmental Capital
Budgets (DCBs) are recognised directly in contributed equity in that year.
Other Distributions to Owners
The FRR require that distributions to owners be debited to contributed equity unless it is in the nature of a dividend.
Budget Variance Commentary:
Statement of Change in Equity
Contributed equity is $5.155 million above budget at 30 June 2016 due the difference in opening balances between actual results and
budget. The administered portion of the APVMA's special account became an equity injection when the APVMA transitioned from an FMA
Act agency to a corporate Commonwealth entity.
This difference, partially offset by the greater than budgeted deficit for the 2015-16 financial year explains the difference of $2.264 million in
the total equity closing balance.
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Australian Pesticides and Veterinary Medicines Authority
CASH FLOW STATEMENT
for the year ended 30 June 2016

2016
$'000

2015
$'000

Original
Budget
2016
$'000

Agricultural and Veterinary Chemicals (Administration)
Act 1992 contribution
Corporate Commonwealth entity payment item
Net GST received
Interest received
Other cash received

33 425
732
866
14
288

34 390
743
980
17
593

31 997
732
996
-

Total cash received

35 325

36 723

33 725

Cash used
Employees
Suppliers

23 640
9 076

22 531
11 105

22 211
10 159

32 716

33 636

32 370

2 609

3 087

1 355

Notes
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash received

Total cash used
Net cash flows from operating activities

3.2A

INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Cash received
Proceeds from sales of property, plant and equipment, and intangibles

-

3

-

Total cash received

-

3

-

265
2 249

170
1 840

600
750

Cash used
Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Purchase of intangibles
Total cash used
Net cash flows from or (used by) investing activities

2 514

2 010

1 350

(2 514)

(2 007)

(1 350)

-

FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Cash used
Closing of the APVMA special account on 1 July 2014

-

13 424

Total cash used

-

13 424

-

Net cash flows from or (used by) financing activities

-

(13 424)

-

95

(12 344)

5

1 289

13 633

214

1 384

1 289

219

I
A

Net increase or (decrease) in cash held
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the reporting period
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the reporting period

2.1A

The above statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Australian Pesticides and Veterinary Medicines Authority
FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

CASH FLOW STATEMENT
for the year ended 30 June 2016
Budget Variance Commentary:
Cash Flow Statement
Cash received is $1.6 million above budget largely due a greater than anticipated amounts of cash being required to be drawdown
throughout the year.
As stated in the budget variance commentary for the Statement of Financial Position, the difference in purchases of property, plant and
equipment relates to the delay in conducting signficant fitout upgrades to the APVMA's office in Symonston ACT.
The majority of the additional money drawndown was required to fund the greater level of investment in internally developed software
(intangibles).
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OVERVIEW
Objectives of the Australian Pesticides and Veterinary Medicines Authority
The Australian Pesticides and Veterinary Medicines Authority (APVMA) is an Australian Government controlled not-for-profit entity.
The APVMA is responsible for the assessment and registration of pesticides and veterinary medicines and for their regulation up to
and including the point of retail sale.
The APVMA administers the National Registration Scheme for Agricultural and Veterinary Chemicals (NRS) in partnership with the
States and Territories and with the active involvement of other Australian government agencies.
Its role is to independently evaluate the safety and performance of chemical products intended for sale, making sure that the health
and safety of people, animals and the environment are protected.
The APVMA was established under the Agricultural and Veterinary Chemicals (Administration) Act 1992. Following the introduction
of the PGPA Act on 1 July 2014, the APVMA was reclassified from an FMA Act entity to a corporate Commonwealth entity.
The APVMA is structured to meet a single outcome:
Outcome 1: Protection of the health and safety of people, animals, the environment, and agricultural and livestock industries
through regulation of pesticides and veterinary medicines.
The continued existence of the APVMA in its present form and with its present programs is dependent on Government policy and on
continuing appropriations by Parliament for the APVMA’s administration and programs.
Basis of Preparation of the Financial Report
The financial statements are general purpose financial statements and are required by section 42 of the Public Governnance,
Performance and Accountability Act 2013.
The Financial Statements and notes have been prepared in accordance with:
a) Public Governance, Performance and Accountability (Financial Reporting) Rule 2015 (FRR) for reporting periods ending on or after
1 July 2015; and
b) Australian Accounting Standards and Interpretations issued by the Australian Accounting Standards Board (AASB) that apply for
the reporting period.
The financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis and in accordance with the historical cost convention, except for
certain assets at fair value. Except where stated, no allowance is made for the effect of changing prices on the results or the
financial position. The financial report is presented in Australian dollars and values are rounded to the nearest thousand dollars
unless otherwise specified.
Unless alternative treatment is specifically required by an accounting standard, income and expenses are recognised in the
Statement of Comprehensive Income when and only when the flow, consumption or loss of economic benefits has occurred and can
be reliably measured.
Significant Accounting Judgements and Estimates
In the process of applying the accounting policies listed in this note, the APVMA has made the following judgements that have the
most significant impact on the amounts recorded in the financial statements: the fair value of leasehold improvements have been
taken to be the market value of similar properties as determined by an individual valuer. In some instances, entity buildings are
purpose-built and may in fact realise more or less in the market.
Commentary on the accounting judgement and estimates used in valuing employee provision can be found in the accounting policy
section under note 4.1.
New Australian Accounting Standards
Adoption of new Australian Accounting Standard Requirements
No accounting standard has been adopted earlier than the application date as stated in the standard.
No new standards issued prior to the signing of the statement by the accountable authority and chief financial officer were
applicable to the current reporting period and had a material effect on the APVMA's financial statements.

Page 10

67

Australian Pesticides and Veterinary Medicines Authority

Future Australian Accounting Standard Requirements
The following amended standards issued by the Australian Accounting Standards Board prior to the signing of the statement by the
accountable authority and chief financial officer are expected to have a material impact on the entity’s financial statements for
future reporting period(s):
Standard/Interpretation

Application date
for the APVMA

AASB 16 Leases

1 July 2016

Nature of impending changes in accounting policy and likely impact
on initial application
AASB 16 brings more leases onto the balance sheet of lessees,
thereby increasing the transparency surrounding such arrangements
and making the lessee’s balance sheet better reflect the economics of
its transactions.
Likely impact: May have an impact on the treatment of future lease
agreements.

AASB 124 Related Party Disclosures

1 July 2016

The amendments extend the scope of AASB 124 to include
application by not-for-profit public sector entities. Implementation
guidance is included to assist application of the Standard by not-forprofit public sector entities. This Standard also makes related
amendments to AASB 10 Consolidated Financial Statements and
AASB 1049 Whole of Government and General Government Sector
Financial Reporting, and an editorial correction to AASB 124.
Likely impact: This amendment will impact the APVMA's reporting
requirements for Related Party transactions.

AASB 9 Financial Instruments

1 July 2018

AASB 9 was reissued in December 2014 and now incorporates:
- the classification and measurement requirements for financial
assets (including limited amendments) and for financial liabilities, and
the recognition and derecognition requirements for financial
instruments (representing the first phase of the three phase project
that replaces AASB 139);
- requirements for impairment of financial assets (representing the
second phase); and
- hedge accounting (representing the third phase).

Likely impact: May have an impact on the recognition and
measurement of financial instruments.
AASB 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers

1 July 2018

AASB 15 will supersede the current revenue recognition guidance
including AASB 118 ‘Revenue,’ AASB 111 ‘Construction Contracts’ and
the related Interpretations when it becomes effective. Under AASB
15, an entity recognises revenue when (or as) a performance
obligation is satisfied, i.e. when ‘control’ of the goods or services
underlying the particular performance obligation is transferred to the
customer. AASB 15 applies to annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2018.
Likely impact: APVMA is assessing the potential impact of this
standard.

All other new standards, revised standards, interpretations or amending standards that were issued by the Australian Accounting
Standards Board prior to the sign-off date and are applicable to future reporting period(s) are not expected to have a future material
impact on the entity’s financial statements.
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OVERVIEW
Taxation
The APVMA is exempt from all forms of taxation except Fringe Benefits Tax (FBT) and the Goods and Services Tax (GST).
Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of GST except:
a) where the amount of GST incurred is not recoverable from the Australian Taxation Office; and
b) for receivables and payables where applicable.
Events After the Reporting Period
There were no subsequent events between balance date and signing of the financial statements that had the potential to
significantly affect the ongoing structure and financial activities of the entity.
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Australian Pesticides and Veterinary Medicines Authority
FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE - This section analyses the financial performance of the Australian Pesticides and Veterinary
Medicines Authority for the year ended 30 June 2016

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

A

1.1: Expenses

1.1A: Employee benefits
Wages and salaries
Superannuation:
Defined contribution plans
Defined benefit plans
Leave and other entitlements
Seperation and redundancies
Other employee benefits
Total employee benefits

2016
$'000

2015
$'000

16 814

16 687

1 862
1 315
2 620
373

1 868
1 138
1 938
77
405

22 984

22 113

Accounting Policy
Accounting policies for employee related expenses is contained in the people and relationships section.

1.1B: Suppliers
Goods and services supplied or rendered
Consultants
Contractors
Travel
IT Services
Other
Total goods and services supplied or rendered

859
5 537
198
839
486

1 242
6 109
186
759
179

7 919

8 475

363
7 556

404
8 071

7 919

8 475

Workers compensation premiums

1 254
180

1 292
94

Total other supplier expenses

1 434

1 386

9 353

9 861

AGoods supplied

Services rendered
Total goods and services supplied or rendered
Other supplier expenses

AAOperating lease rentals - external parties
A Minimum lease payments

ATotal supplier expenses

Leasing commitments

AA

The APVMA in its capacity as lessee has entered into a lease of occupancy its office at Amtech Estate, Symonson until October 2020.
This lease is subject to annual increases of 3.75%.

Commitment for minimum lease payments in relation to non-cancellable
operating leases are payable as follows:
A Within 1 year
A Between 1 to 5 years
Over 5 years
Total operating lease commitments

1 473
5 298
-

1 420
6 233
539

6 771

8 192

A
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Australian Pesticides and Veterinary Medicines Authority
A

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE - This section analyses the financial performance of the Australian Pesticides and Veterinary
Medicines Authority for the year ended 30 June 2016

1.1: Expenses
A

Accounting Policy
Where an asset is acquired by means of a finance lease, the asset is capitalised at either the fair value of the lease property or, if
lower, the present value of minimum lease payments at the inception of the contract and a liability is recognised at the same time
and for the same amount.
The discount rate used is the interest rate implicit in the lease. Leased assets are amortised over the period of the lease. Lease
payments are allocated between the principal component and the interest expense.
Operating lease payments are expensed on a straight-line basis which is representative of the pattern of benefits derived from the
leased assets.

A
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A1.2:

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE - This section analyses the financial performance of the Australian Pesticides and Veterinary
Medicines Authority for the year ended 30 June 2016

Own-Source Revenue, Gains and Revenue from Government
2016
$'000

2015
$'000

36
255

36
521

291

557

OWN-SOURCE REVENUE
1.2A: Other revenue
Resources received free of charge
Remuneration of auditors
Other revenue
Total other revenue
Accounting Policy
Resources Received Free of Charge
Resources received free of charge are recognised as revenue when, and only when, a fair value can be reliably determined and
the services would have been purchased if they had not been donated. Use of those resources is recognised as an expense.
Resources received free of charge are recorded as either revenue or gains depending on their nature.
Other Revenue
Revenue from rendering of services is recognised by reference to the stage of completion of contracts at the reporting date. The
revenue is recognised when the amount of revenue, stage of completion and transaction costs incurred can be reliably
measured; and the probable economic benefits with the transaction will flow to the entity. The stage of completion of contracts
at the reporting date is determined by reference to the proportion that costs incurred to date bear to the estimated total costs of
the transaction.
Interest revenue is recognised using the effective interest method as set out in AASB 139 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement.
ANote

4: Income

REVENUE FROM GOVERNMENT
1.2C: Revenue from Government
Corporate Commonwealth entity payment item
Department of Agriculture & Water Resources contribution
Agricultural and Veterinary Chemicals (Administration) Act 1992
(refer below)
Total revenue from Government

732

743

29 515
30 247

28 441
29 184

Department of Agriculture & Water Resources contribution is equal to the following fees and charges paid by industry:
Levies
Annual renewal fee
Product application fees
Good manufacturing practice (GMP) licence fees
Permits, actives and other fees
Total industry contributions

16 702
4 984
5 334
1 166
1 329

16 263
4 703
5 554
1 021
900

29 515

28 441

Accounting Policy
Revenue from Government
Funding received or receivable from non-corporate Commonwealth entities (appropriated to the non-corporate Commonwealth
entity as a corporate Commonwealth entity payment item for payment to this entity) is recognised as Revenue from Government
by the corporate Commonwealth entity unless the funding is in the nature of an equity injection or a loan.
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Australian Pesticides and Veterinary Medicines Authority
FINANCIAL POSITION - This section analyses Australian Pesticides and Veterinary Medicines Authority's assets used to
conduct its operations and the operating liabilities incurred as a result.
Employee related information is disclosed in the People and Relationships section.

2.1: Financial Assets

2.1A: Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash on hand or on deposit
Total cash and cash equivalents

2016
$'000

2015
$'000

1 384

1 289

1 384

1 289

462
267

50
113

729

163

9 024

13 426

9 024

13 426

148
148

94
94

9 901

13 683

(17)
(17)

(17)
(17)

9 884

13 666

9 884
-

13 666
-

9 884

13 666

9 391

13 562

445
65

6
19
96

9 901

13 683

Accounting Policy
Cash is recognised at its nominal amount. Cash and cash equivalents includes:
a) cash on hand;
b) demand deposits in bank accounts with an original maturity of 3 months or less that are readily
convertible to known amounts of cash and subject to insignificant risk of changes in value

2.1B: Trade and Other Receivables
Goods and services
Goods and services
Other
Total receivables for goods and services
Contribution receivable
Department of Agriculture and Water Resources
Total contribution receivable
Other receivable
GST receivable from the Australian Taxation Office
Total other receivables
Total trade and other receivables (gross)
Less impairment allowance account:
Goods and services
Total impairmemnt allowance account
Total trade and other receivables (net)
Trade and other receivables (net) are expected to be recovered in:
No more than 12 months
A More than 12 months
Total trade and other receivables (net)
Trade and other receivables are aged as follows:
Not overdue
Overdue by:
Less than 30 days
31 to 60 days
61 to 90 days
More than 90 days
Total receivables (gross)
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Australian Pesticides and Veterinary Medicines Authority
FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

FINANCIAL POSITION - This section analyses Australian Pesticides and Veterinary Medicines Authority's assets used to
conduct its operations and the operating liabilities incurred as a result.
Employee related information is disclosed in the People and Relationships section.

2.1: Financial Assets

The impairment allowance account is aged as follows:
Not overdue
Overdue by:
A
Less than 30 days
More than 90 days
ATotal impairment allowance account

2016
$'000

2015
$'000

-

-

(17)

(17)

(17)

(17)

Accounting Policy
Trade and Other Receivables
Trade and other receivables that have fixed or determinable payments, and are not quoted in an active market, are classified as
'receivables'. Receivables are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method less impairment.
Impairment
Trade and Other Receivables are assessed for impairment at the end of each reporting period

A

Reconciliation of the impairment allowance account:

A
AMovements in relation to 2016

Opening balance
Amounts reversed
Amounts written off
New impaired assets
AClosing balance
A
A

Movements in relation to 2015

Opening balance
Amounts recovered and reversed
Amounts written off
New impaired assets
Closing balance

Goods and
services
$'000
(17)
-

Total
$'000
(17)
-

(17)

(17)

Goods and
services
$'000
(305)
288
-

Total
$'000
(305)
288
-

(17)

(17)

Credit terms for goods and services were within 30 days (2015: 30 days).
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Australian Pesticides and Veterinary Medicines Authority
FINANCIAL POSITION - This section analyses Australian Pesticides and Veterinary Medicines Authority's assets used to
conduct its operations and the operating liabilities incurred as a result.
Employee related information is disclosed in the People and Relationships section.

2.2: Non-Financial Assets
A

2.2A: Reconciliation of the Opening and Closing Balances of Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangibles
Reconciliation of the opening and closing balances for 2016
Leasehold
Improvements

Other
PP&E

Computer
Software1

Total

$'000

$'000

$'000

$'000

2 637
(868)

1 224
(463)

6 361
(2 069)

10 222
(3 400)

1 769

761

4 292

6 822

-

265
-

135
2 114

400
2 114

60
(351)

71
(313)

(837)

-

-

-

131
(1 501)
-

Total as at 30 June 2016

1 478

784

5 704

7 966

Total as of 30 June 2016 represented by:
Gross book value
Accumulated depreciation and impairment

1 735
( 257)

784
-

8 558
(2 854)

11 077
(3 111)

Total as of 30 June 2016

1 478

784

5 704

7 966

As at 1 July 2015
Gross book value
Accumulated depreciation and impairment
Total as at 1 July 2015
Additions:
Purchase
Internally developed
Revaluation recognised in other comprehensive income
Impairments recognised in the operating result
Depreciation expense
Disposals:
Disposal
Accumulated depreciation of disposed assets

1. The carrying amount of computer software included $1,008,023 purchased software and $4,696,293 internally generated
software.
No leasehold improvements, property, plant and equipment and intangibles are expected to be sold or disposed of within the next
12 months
Revaluations of non-financial assets
All revaluations were conducted in accordance with the revaluation policy stated after the comparative table. On 30 June 2016, an
independent valuer conducted the revaluations.
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Australian Pesticides and Veterinary Medicines Authority
FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

FINANCIAL POSITION - This section analyses Australian Pesticides and Veterinary Medicines Authority's assets used to
conduct its operations and the operating liabilities incurred as a result.
Employee related information is disclosed in the People and Relationships section.

2.2: Non-Financial Assets
A

Reconciliation of the opening and closing balances for 2015
Leasehold
Improvements

Other
PP&E

Computer
Software

Total

$'000

$'000

$'000

$'000

2 637
(516)

1 057
(212)

4 729
(1667)

8 423
(2395)

2 121

845

3 062

6 028

-

170

185
1 655

355
1 655

(352)

(253)

(598)

-

(3)
2

(208)
196

( 1 203)
( 211)
198

Total as at 30 June 2015

1 769

761

4 292

6 822

Total as at 30 June 2015 represented by:
Gross book value
Accumulated depreciation and impairment

2 637
(868)

1 224
(463)

6 361
(2 069)

10 222
(3 400)

Total as at 30 June 2015

1 769

761

4 292

6 822

As at 1 July 2014
Gross book value
Accumulated depreciation and impairment
Total as at 1 July 2014
Additions:
Purchase
Internally developed
Revaluation recognised in other comprehensive income
Impairments recognised in the operating result
Depreciation expense
Disposals:
A
Other disposals
Accumulated depreciation of disposed assets
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Australian Pesticides and Veterinary Medicines Authority
FINANCIAL POSITION - This section analyses Australian Pesticides and Veterinary Medicines Authority's assets used to
conduct its operations and the operating liabilities incurred as a result.
Employee related information is disclosed in the People and Relationships section.

2.2: Non-Financial Assets
A

Accounting Policy
Assets are recorded at cost on acquisition except as stated below. The cost of acquisition includes the fair value of assets
transferred in exchange and liabilities undertaken. Financial assets are initially measured at their fair value plus transaction costs
where appropriate.
Asset Recognition Threshold
Purchases of property, plant and equipment are recognised initially at cost in the statement of financial position, except for
purchases costing less than $5 000 for leasehold improvements and $2 000 for all other types, which are expensed in the year of
acquisition (other than where they form part of a group of similar items which are significant in total).

The initial cost of an asset includes an estimate of the cost of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it
is located. This is particularly relevant to ‘makegood’ provisions in property leases taken up by the APVMA where there exists an
obligation to restore the property to its original condition. These costs are included in the value of the APVMA’s leasehold
improvements with a corresponding provision for the ‘makegood’ recognised.
Revaluations
All assets are initially recognised at cost. Property, plant and equipment are then carried at fair value once they have been
revalued in accordance with policy. Valuations are conducted with sufficient frequency to ensure that the carrying amounts of
assets do not differ materially from the assets’ fair values at reporting date. The regularity of independent valuations depends
upon the volatility of movements in market values for the relevant assets. Assets are presently revalued on a three year cycle.
All assets (except for intangibles) were revalued as at 30 June 2016 by an independent valuer.
Revaluation adjustments are made on a class basis. Any revaluation increment is credited to equity under the heading of asset
revaluation reserve except to the extent that it reverses a previous revaluation decrement of the same asset class that was
previously recognised through operating result. Revaluation decrements for a class of assets are recognised directly through
operating result except to the extent that they reverse a previous revaluation increment for that class.
Any accumulated depreciation as at the revaluation date is eliminated against the gross carrying amount of the asset and the asset
restated to the revalued amount.
Depreciation
Depreciable property plant and equipment assets are written-off to their estimated residual values over their estimated useful lives
to the APVMA using, in all cases, the straight-line method of depreciation.
Depreciation rates (useful lives), residual values and methods are reviewed at each reporting date and necessary adjustments are
recognised in the current, or current and future reporting periods, as appropriate.
Depreciation rates applying to each class of depreciable asset are based on the following useful lives:

Leasehold improvements
Property, Plant and Equipment

2016

2015

Shorter of lease term or
useful life

Shorter of lease term or
useful life

3 to 15 years

3 to 15 years
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Australian Pesticides and Veterinary Medicines Authority
FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

FINANCIAL POSITION - This section analyses Australian Pesticides and Veterinary Medicines Authority's assets used to
conduct its operations and the operating liabilities incurred as a result.
Employee related information is disclosed in the People and Relationships section.

2.2: Non-Financial Assets
A

Accounting Policy
Impairment
All assets were assessed for impairment at 30 June 2016. Where indications of impairment exist, the asset’s recoverable amount is
estimated and an impairment adjustment made if the asset’s recoverable amount is less than its carrying amount.
The recoverable amount of an asset is the higher of its fair value less costs to sell and its value in use. Value in use is the present
value of the future cash flows expected to be derived from the asset. Where the future economic benefit of an asset is not
primarily dependent on the asset’s ability to generate future cash flows, and the asset would be replaced if the APVMA were
deprived of the asset, its value in use is taken to be its depreciated replacement cost.
Derecognition
An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no further future economic benefits are expected
from its use or disposal.
No major items of property, plant and equipment are expected to be sold or disposed of within the next 12 months.
Intangibles
The APVMA’s intangibles comprise internally developed and externally acquired software for internal use.
Software is amortised on a straight-line basis over its anticipated useful life.
All software assets were assessed for indications of impairment as at 30 June 2016.
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Australian Pesticides and Veterinary Medicines Authority
FINANCIAL POSITION - This section analyses Australian Pesticides and Veterinary Medicines Authority's assets used to
conduct its operations and the operating liabilities incurred as a result.
Employee related information is disclosed in the People and Relationships section.

2.2: Non-Financial Assets
2016
$'000

2015
$'000

2.2B: Other Non-Financial Assets
Prepayments
Total other non-financial assets

415

283

415

283

Total other non-financial assets expected to be received in:
No more than 12 months
More than 12 months
Total other non-financial assets

404
11

262
21

415

283

2016
$'000

2015
$'000

5 062

3 848

5 062

3 848

2.3B: Other Payables
Salaries and wages
Superannuation
Unearned income
Lease incentive
Lease liability
Total other payables

96
172
644

685
106
25
213
660

912

1 689

Total other payables are expected to be settled in:
No more than 12 months
More than 12 months
Total other payables

201
711

856
833

912

1 689

No indicators of impairment were found for other non-financial assets.

2.3: Payables
A
A

2.3A: Suppliers
Trade creditors and accruals
Total supplier payables
All supplier payables are expected to be settled within 12 months
Settlement is usually made within 30 days.
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Australian Pesticides and Veterinary Medicines Authority
FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

FINANCIAL POSITION - This section analyses Australian Pesticides and Veterinary Medicines Authority's assets used to
conduct its operations and the operating liabilities incurred as a result.
Employee related information is disclosed in the People and Relationships section.

2.4: Other Provisions

2.4A: Other provisions
Provision for restoration obligations
Total other provisions

2016
$'000

2015
$'000

472

455

472

455

455
17

438
17

472

455

All other provisions are expected to be settled in more than 12 months.
Carrying amount 1 July 2015
Unwinding of discount or change in discount rate
Closing balance 30 June 2016

The APVMA currently has one agreement for the leasing of premises that have provisions requiring the APVMA to restore the
premises to their original condition at the conclusion of the lease. The APVMA has made a provision to reflect the present value of
this obligation.
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Australian Pesticides and Veterinary Medicines Authority
FUNDING - This section identifies the Australian Pesticides and Veterinary Medicine's funding structure

3.1: Regulatory Charging Summary
3.1A: Regulatory Charging Summary
2016
$'000

2015
$'000

Amount applied
Payments from portfolio bodies
Total amounts applied

33 425

34 390

33 425

34 390

Expenses
Departmental
Total expenses

32 824

31 904

32 824

31 904

External revenue
Payments to portfolio bodies
Total external revenue

29 741

28 440

29 741

28 440

No amounts were written off
Regulatory charging activities:
A AS

The agricultural and veterinary medicines chemical industry pay application fees to register new products and active
constituents, amend a current registration, or apply for a permit. An annual fee is payable each year to renew the
registration of a product. Product owners also pay an annual levy based on the sales of their registered products.
Documentation (a Cost Recovery Impact Statement) for the above activities is available at
www.apvma.gov.au/node/4161.
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Australian Pesticides and Veterinary Medicines Authority
FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

FUNDING - This section identifies the Australian Pesticides and Veterinary Medicine's funding structure

3.2: Cash Flow Reconciliation
3.2A: Cash Flow Reconciliation
2016
$'000

2015
$'000

1 384
1 384

1 289
1 289

-

-

(33 556)
30 247
-

(32 647)
29 184
5 155

1 501
-

1 203
10
13 424

3 782
(132)

(13 103)
23

313
1 214
(777)
17

(174)
(52)
47
17

2 609

3 087

Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents as per statement of financial position to
cash flow statement
Cash and cash equivalents as per:
Cash Flow Statement
Statement of Financial Position
Discrepancy

Reconciliation of net cost of service to net cash flows from operating activities:
Net cost of services
Revenue from Government
Equity injection following restructure to a corporate Commonwealth entity
Adjustment for non-cash items
Depreciation / amortisation
(Gain)/loss on disposal of assets
Closing of the APVMA special account on 1 July 2014
Movement in assets and liabilities
Assets
(Increase)/decrease in net receivables
(Increase)/decrease in prepayments
Liabilities
Increase/(decrease) in employee provisions
Increase/(decrease) in supplier payables
Increase/(decrease) in other payables
Increase/(decrease) in other provisions
Net cash from operating activities
A AS
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Australian Pesticides and Veterinary Medicines Authority
PEOPLE AND RELATIONSHIPS - This section describes a range of employment and post employment benefits
provided to our people and our relationship with key people.

4.1: Employee Provisions

4.1A: Employee provisions
Long service leave
Annual leave
Total employee provisions
Employee provisions are expected to be settled in:
No more than 12 months
More than 12 months
ATotal employee provisions

2016
$'000

2015
$'000

4 100
1 791

3 876
1 702

5 891

5 578

2 526
3 365

2 022
3 556

5 891

5 578

Accounting Policy
Liabilities for short-term employee benefits and termination benefits expected within twelve months of the end of reporting
period are measured at their nominal amounts.
Other long-term employee benefits are measured as net total of the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the end of
the reporting period minus the fair value at the end of the reporting period of plan assets (if any) out of which the obligations are
to be settled directly.
Leave
The liability for employee benefits includes provision for annual leave and long service leave.
The leave liabilities are calculated on the basis of employees’ remuneration at the estimated salary rates that will be applied at the
time the leave is taken, including the entity’s employer superannuation contribution rates to the extent that the leave is likely to
be taken during service rather than paid out on termination.
The liability for long service leave has been determined by reference to the 'short-hand method' as outlined in the Resource
Management Guide No. 125 - Commonwealth Entities Financial Statements Guide as at 30 June 2016. The estimate of the present
value of the liability takes into account attrition rates and pay increases through promotion and inflation and is discounted using
the 10 year bond rate at 30 June 2016.
Separation and Redundancy
Provision is made for separation and redundancy benefit payments. The entity recognises a provision for termination when it has
developed a detailed formal plan for the terminations and has informed those employees affected that it will carry out the
terminations.
Superannuation
The entity's staff are members of the Commonwealth Superannuation Scheme (CSS), the Public Sector Superannuation Scheme
(PSS), or the PSS accumulation plan (PSSap), or other superannuation funds held outside the Australian Government.
The CSS and PSS are defined benefit schemes for the Australian Government. The PSSap is a defined contribution scheme.
The liability for defined benefits is recognised in the financial statements of the Australian Government and is settled by the
Australian Government in due course. This liability is reported in the Department of Finance’s administered schedules and notes.
The entity makes employer contributions to the employees' defined benefit superannuation scheme at rates determined by an
actuary to be sufficient to meet the current cost to the Government. The entity accounts for the contributions as if they were
contributions to defined contribution plans.
The liability for superannuation recognised as at 30 June represents outstanding contributions.
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Australian Pesticides and Veterinary Medicines Authority
FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

PEOPLE AND RELATIONSHIPS - This section describes a range of employment and post employment benefits
provided to our people and our relationship with key people.

4.2: Senior Management Personnel Remuneration
2016
$

2015
$

1 355 924
1 355 924

1 442 528
1 442 528

Post-employment benefits:
Superannuation
Total post-employment benefits

276 301
276 301

249 589
249 589

Other long-term employee benefits:
Annual leave
Long service leave
Total other long-term employee benefits

67 402
34 972
102 374

113 942
49 667
163 609

-

76 730

1 734 599

1 932 456

Short-term employee benefits:
Salary
Total Short-term employee benefits

Terminations
Total senior executive remuneration expenses

The total number of senior management personnel who are included in the above table is 8 individuals (2015: 9 individuals).
2016 includes 4 individuals who held senior management positions for only part of the year (2015: 4 individuals).
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Australian Pesticides and Veterinary Medicines Authority
MANAGING UNCERTAINTIES - This section analyses how the Australian Pesticides and Veterinary Medicines Authority
manages financial risks within its operating environment

5.1: Contingent Assets and Liabilities
Quantifiable Contingencies
The APVMA has quantifiable contingent liabilites totalling $70,000 (2015: nil) relating to litigation costs.
The APVMA had no unquantifiable contingencies.
Accounting Policy
Contingent liabilities and contingent assets are not recognised in the statement of financial position but are reported in the notes.
They may arise from uncertainty as to the existence of a liability or asset or represent an asset or liability in respect of which the
amount cannot be reliably measured. Contingent assets are disclosed when settlement is probable but not virtually certain and
contingent liabilities are disclosed when settlement is greater than remote.

5.2: Financial Instruments
2016
$'000

2015
$'000

5.2A: Categories of financial instruments
Financial Assets
Receivables financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Trade & other receivables

1 384
712

1 289
146

Total receivables

2 096

1 435

Total financial assets

2 096

1 435

Other Liabilities
Trade creditors and accruals
Other payables

5 062
740

3 848
1 476

Total financial liabilities measured at amortised cost

5 802

5 324

Total financial liabilities

5 802

5 324

5.2B: Net gains or losses on financial assets
Receivables
Interest revenue

13

18

Net gain/(loss) from financial assets

13

18

5.2C: Net gains and losses on financial liabilities
Other Liabilities
Lease liability (increase)/decrease

16

(32)

Net gain/(loss) from financial assets

16

(32)

Financial liabilities

A
A
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost
A
A

A
A
A

A
A
A
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Australian Pesticides and Veterinary Medicines Authority
FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

MANAGING UNCERTAINTIES - This section analyses how the Australian Pesticides and Veterinary Medicines Authority
manages financial risks within its operating environment

5.2: Financial Instruments
5.2D: Fair value of financial instruments
The net fair values of cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables and other receivables approximate their carrying amounts.
The net fair values for trade creditors and other liabilities are approximated by their carrying amounts.

Accounting Policy
Financial assets
The APVMA classifies its financial assets in the following categories:
a) receivables.
The classification depends on the nature and purpose of the financial assets and is determined at the time of initial recognition.
Financial assets are recognised and derecognised upon trade date.
Effective Interest Method
Income is recognised on an effective interest rate basis except for financial assets that are recognised at fair value through profit
or loss.
Receivables
Trade receivables, and other receivables that have fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market are
classified as ‘receivables’. Receivables are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method less impairment.
Interest is recognised by applying the effective interest rate.
Impairment of Financial Assets
Financial assets are assessed for impairment at the end of each reporting period.
Financial assets held at amortised cost - if there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been incurred for receivables,
the amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows discounted at the asset’s original effective interest rate. The carrying amount is reduced by way of an allowance
account. The loss is recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.
Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities are classified as other financial liabilities. Financial liabilities are recognised and derecognised upon ‘trade date’.
Other Financial Liabilities
Other financial liabilities, are initially measured at fair value, net of transaction costs. These liabilities are subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest method, with interest expense recognised on an effective interest basis.
Supplier and other payables are recognised at amortised cost. Liabilities are recognised to the extent that the goods or services
have been received (and irrespective of having been invoiced).
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Australian Pesticides and Veterinary Medicines Authority
MANAGING UNCERTAINTIES - This section analyses how the Australian Pesticides and Veterinary Medicines Authority
manages financial risks within its operating environment

5.2: Financial Instruments
5.2E: Credit risk
The APVMA is exposed to minimal credit risk as receivables are cash, trade receivables and other receivables. The maximum
exposure to credit risk is the risk that arises from potential default of a debtor. This amount is equal to the total of trade and
other debtors (2016: $729 000 and 2015: $163 000).
To aid the APVMA to manage its credit risk, there are internal policies and procedures that guide employees on debt recovery
techniques that are to be applied.

The APVMA holds no collateral to mitigate against credit risk.
Credit quality of financial instruments not past due or individually determined as impaired
Not Past
Due Nor Not Past Due
Impaired Nor Impaired
2016
2015
$'000
$'000

Past due or
impaired
2016
$'000

Past due or
impaired
2015
$'000

Receivables
Cash and cash equivalents
Trade & other receivables

1 384
219

1 289
42

510

121

Total

1 603

1 331

510

121

0 to 30
days
$'000

31 to 60
days
$'000

61 to 90
days
$'000

90+
days
$'000

Receivables
Trade & other receivables

445

-

-

48

493

Total

445

-

-

48

493

31 to 60
days
$'000

61 to 90
days
$'000

90+
days
$'000

Total
$'000

Ageing of financial assets that are past due but not impaired for 2016
Total
$'000

Ageing of financial assets that are past due but not impaired for 2015
A
A

0 to 30
days
$'000

Receivables
Trade & other receivables

6

-

19

79

104

ATotal

6

-

19

79

104
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FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

MANAGING UNCERTAINTIES - This section analyses how the Australian Pesticides and Veterinary Medicines Authority
manages financial risks within its operating environment

5.2: Financial Instruments
A
A

5.2F: Liquidity risk
The APVMA’s financial liabilities are payables. The exposure to liquidity risk is based on the notion that the APVMA will
encounter difficulty in meeting its obligations associated with financial liabilities.
This is highly unlikely due to the level of funds held in reserve as well as funding mechanisms available to the APVMA (Advance
from the Finance Minister). The APVMA manages its budgeted funds to ensure it has adequate funds to meet payments as they
fall due. In addition, the APVMA has policies in place to ensure timely payments are made when due and has no past experience
of default.
Maturities for non-derivative financial liabilities 2016
On
demand
2016
$'000

within 1
year
2016
$'000

1 to 5
years
2016
$'000

>5
years
2016
$'000

Total
2016
$'000

Other liabilities
Trade creditors and accruals
Other payables

-

5 062
160

580

-

5 062
740

Total

-

5 222

580

-

5 802

On
demand
2015
$'000

within 1
year
2015
$'000

1 to 5
years
2015
$'000

>5
years
2015
$'000

Total
2015
$'000

Other liabilities
Trade creditors and accruals
Other payables

-

3 848
832

567

77

3 848
1 476

Total

-

4 680

567

77

5 324

Maturities for non-derivative financial liabilities 2015

A
A

5.2G: Market risk
The APVMA holds basic financial instruments that do not expose the Agency to market risks. The APVMA is not exposed to
'Currency risk', Interest rate risk' or Other price risk'.
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A

Market Approach
Depreciated
Replacement Cost

Level 3

Consumed economic benefit /
Obsolescence of asset

Replacement Cost New

Adjusted market transactions

In 2016 the APVMA procured valuation services from Australian Valuation Solutions (AVS) and relied on valuation models provided by AVS. The entity tests the
procedures of the valuation model at least once every 12 months. The AVS has provided assurance that the model developed is in compliance with AASB 13.

3. Recurring and non-recurring Level 3 fair value measurements - valuation processes

Depreciated
Replacement Cost

Level 2

Level 3

2. Fair value measurements - highest and best use differs from current use of non-financial assets (NFAs)
The highest and best use of all non-financial assets are the same as their current use.

2 491

213

239

2 250

548

1 730

Inputs used
Replacement Cost New (price per
sq/m)
Consumed economic benefit /
Obsolescence of asset

For Level 2 and 3 fair value measurements

2015 Category (Level 1,
2 or 33) Valuation technique(s)1
$'000

545

1 466

1. No change in valuation technique occurred during the period.

Total fair value measurement of assets in the
statement of financial position

Property, plant and equipment

Non-financial assets2
Leasehold improvements

2016
$'000

Fair value measurements at the end of the
reporting period

Note 5.3A: Fair Value Measurements, Valuation Techniques and Input Used

Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilites than the entity can access at measurement date.
Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly.
Level 3: Unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

The following table provides an analysis of assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value.
The different levels of fair value heirarchy are defined below.

5.3: Fair Value Measurements

MANAGING UNCERTAINTIES - This section analyses how the Australian Pesticides and Veterinary Medicines Authority manages financial risks
within its operating environment

Australian Pesticides and Veterinary Medicines Authority
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1 730

1 466

239

-

-

-

35

(9)

213

2016
2015
$'000

Property,
plant and
equipment

213

-

-

-

-

(42)

255

2015
2014
$'000

Property,
plant and
equipment

1 705

-

-

60

35

(333)

1 943

2016
2015
$'000

Total

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

Non-financial assets

The entity's policy for determining when transfers between levels are deemed to have occurred can be found in Note 1.

4. There have been no transfers between levels of the hierarchy during the year.

2. These losses are presented in the Statement of Comprehensive Income under Depreciation and Amortisation.

1. Open balance as determined in accordance with AASB 13

Totals as at 30 June

-

-

Transfer out of Level 33

-

-

-

60

Revaluation

Transfer into Level 33

-

-

Purchases

2 055
(325)

1 730

2015
2014
$'000

2016
2015
$'000
(324)

Total gains/(losses) in accumulated depreciation2

As at 1 July1

Leasehold
improvements

Leasehold
improvements

Recurring Level 3 fair value measurements - reconciliation for assets

Note 5.3B: Reconciliation For Recurring Level 3 Fair Value Measurements

5.3: Fair Value Measurements

MANAGING UNCERTAINTIES - This section analyses how the Australian Pesticides and Veterinary Medicines Authority manages financial risks
within its operating environment

Australian Pesticides and Veterinary Medicines Authority

1 943

-

-

-

-

(367)

2 310

2015
2014
$'000

Total

89
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Australian Pesticides and Veterinary Medicines Authority
OTHER INFORMATION

6.1: Reporting of Outcomes
A

The APVMA has a single Outcome
Note 6.1A: Net Cost of Outcome Delivery
Outcome 11
2016
$'000

2015
$'000

Expenses
Employee benefits
Suppliers
Depreciation and amortisation
Finance costs
Losses from asset sales

22 984
9 353
1 501
17
-

22 113
9 861
1 203
17
10

Total expenses

33 855

33 204

Own Source Income
Other revenue
Gains from asset sales

291
8

557
-

Total own-source income

299

557

Net (cost)/contribution of outcome delivery

33 556

32 647

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Trade and other receivables
Leasehold improvements
Property, plant and equipment
Intangibles
Other non-financial assets
Total assets

1 384
9 884
1 478
784
5 704
415
19 649

1 289
13 666
1 769
761
4 292
283
22 060

Liabilities
Suppliers
Other payables
Employee provisions
Other provisions
Total liabilities

5 062
912
5 891
472
12 337

3 848
1 689
5 578
455
11 570

1. Outcome 1 is described in the overview.
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A pp end i x A:
Pro gres s agai n s t A P V M A
o pe rat i onal p l a n 2 0 1 5 –1 6
init iat i v es
The following tables summarise progress against each of the initiatives articulated in the APVMA
operational plan 2015–16. The following key applies to each response:
INITIATIVES

PROGRESS

COMMENT

STRATEGY 1: DELIVER REGULATORY DECISIONS THAT ARE TIMELY, SCIENCE-BASED AND
PROPORTIONATE TO THE RISKS BEING MANAGED.

Key result area: regulatory decisions are completed within timeframes
Assess applications for (PAA),
registration of products and permits
and approval of active ingredients

Completed

Refer to performance statistics in
Table 7

Implement new legislative requirements
for chemical review

Completed

Legislation and new process in
place. See ‘Chemical review’
(apvma.gov.au/node10916)

Key result area: actions undertaken are proportionate to the regulatory risk being managed
New risk assessment framework
finalised by June 2016

Ongoing

A conceptual framework for the
risk assessment was completed in
December 2015
Work is now progressing to run a
pilot in 2016–17

Compliance and enforcement strategy
2015–17 finalised and published

Completed

Strategy available on the
APVMA website, see ‘Corporate
documents’
(apvma.gov.au/node/11026)

Framework for regulating spray drift
finalised by December 2015

Ongoing

Targeted consultation with
stakeholders on the APVMA’s
operating principles in relation to
spray drift risk was undertaken in
2015–16
The review of this framework is
continuing

Ongoing

A range of activities have begun
and are in various stages of
development:
nn creation of an internal guide
to safety, efficacy, trade and
labelling legislative criteria
for agricultural and veterinary
chemical products
nn publication systems for decision
summaries
nn creation of a new decision
document

Design and implement a contestable
efficacy pilot

Completed

A contestability pilot for efficacy
assessments is on track. Activities
completed include:
nn public and industry consultation
nn list of pilot reviewers compiled
nn pilot guidance documents are
available at ‘Contestability
of the efficacy assessment’
(apvma.gov.au/node/18691)

Streamline approach to veterinary
residues by publishing and
implementing the Joint FAO/
WHO Expert Committee on Food
Additives (JECFA) review findings by
February 2016

Completed

The recommendations from the
JECFA report were reviewed and
implemented

Revise criteria for when efficacy is a
relevant consideration in assessing an
application; for implementation from
1 July 2016

Partially
completed

Consultation process was
completed to ascertain possible
amendments to the efficacy
legislative instrument
Results are currently being
assessed by the APVMA

Complete a review of the approach
to licensing and auditing of veterinary
manufacturers with implementation
from 1 July 2016 (if applicable)

Ongoing

A consultant was engaged to
undertake the review

95

APPENDIXES

Framework in place to provide
assurance about the quality of APVMA
decision making
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Complete crop grouping project to
group similar crop types for minor use
consideration

Ongoing

A consultation process was
completed on a draft Australian
crop list
Publication of the list and
identification of representative
crops is continuing

Review all permits to identify
candidates that can be moved to
registered product labels

Ongoing

Of the 563 permits examined, 400
are suitable for further review

Publish 2015–17 compliance
and enforcement strategy by
December 2015

Completed

Strategy available on the
APVMA website, see ‘Corporate
documents’(apvma.gov.au/
node/11026)

Review GMP audit schedule and
implement from 1 January 2016

Completed

Review completed

Refined compliance and enforcement
risk model applied to new allegations
from 1 July 2015. Responses employ
graduated tools and are proportionate
to risk

Completed

Industry will be consulted in
2016–17 to ascertain if their
permit approvals should move to
permanent label registration

Findings were presented at
the APVMA industry seminar in
May 2016
A risk management framework
included in the APVMA
compliance and enforcement
strategy, which can be found
under ‘Corporate documents’
(apvma.gov.au/node/11026),
focuses on a risk-based approach
that responds to risks in a
proportionate manner based on
the assessment of risks

Key result area: regulatory science underpins quality regulatory decision making
Develop APVMA regulatory science
strategy

Completed

The regulatory science strategy
is available at apvma.gov.au/
node/11026

Identify opportunities to align
the APVMA’s regulation of veterinary
medicines with those of overseas
jurisdictions

Completed

Report completed and findings
presented at the APVMA industry
seminar in May 2016 in Melbourne

Expand the content of ‘Our science’
web page

Completed

Science web pages published.
See ‘Our science’ (apvma.gov.au/
node/15486)

Develop staff capability by providing
training in regulatory science and new
chemical/biological technologies

Completed

Training provided to staff on
mastitis therapy, ‘gene drive’
technology, neonicotinoids and
pollinators and bioequivalence

nn pharmaceutical equivalence

Completed

Report provided to SQC with
generics guidelines to be
completed in 2016–17

nn a model framework for the
regulation of products of emerging
technologies

Partially
completed

Report provided to SQC with
additional information made
available on ‘Our science’ at
apvma.gov.au/node/15631

nn risk profiling of imported live
micro-organisms for use in
veterinary vaccines

Completed

Received final draft of the
risk profiling decision tree
incorporating industry feedback

nn suitability of new United States of
America and European Union
worker exposure methods for
adoption in Australia

Partially
completed

Draft report received. Comparison
work on European Food Safety
Authority and United States
Environmental Protection Agency
worker exposure continues
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Bystander and resident
comparison exposure calculations
have been received from expert
consultant
nn tier-3 aquatic exposure modelling
(dryland cropping component)

Partially
completed

Report completed and reviewed
by SQC

nn develop a regulatory framework to
support a revised spray drift policy

Ongoing

Targeted consultation with
stakeholders on the APVMA’s
operating principles in relation to
spray drift risk
The review of this framework is
continuing

nn scoping the development of an
approach to assessing fumigants

N/A

This project has stopped

Develop and implement a framework
for obtaining external expert scientific
advice

Ongoing

Ongoing

APPENDIXES

Progress chief scientist projects:
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STRATEGY 2: REDUCE THE BURDEN ON INDUSTRY IN COMPLYING WITH REGULATORY
REQUIREMENTS

Key result area: unnecessary impediments to the efficient operation of regulated entities are
removed
Hold two CEO-only forums with key
industry stakeholder groups to discuss
APVMA performance and key issues

Completed

The CEO held and attended
regular meetings and forums with
key industry stakeholder groups
to discuss performance and other
issues

Conduct a series of industry
information sessions

Completed

Industry information sessions were
held in August and October 2015
and May 2016

Hold quarterly briefings for APVMA
staff about industry-specific issues/
trends/practices

Completed

The APVMA conducted industry
awareness sessions and workshops
throughout the year, including a
tailored workshop on the lifecycle
of product development and
looking at the registration process
from the applicant’s perspective

Undertake an environmental scan with
stakeholders each year for publishing in
the operational plan

Completed

Environmental scan completed
and provided to the Minister in
June 2016
Key aspects incorporated into the
2016–17 operational plan

Develop and implement a plan for
review and adoption of international
guidelines and standards, including a
website to communicate decisions to
stakeholders

Partially
completed

Detailed information has been
published on the website and the
framework will be implemented in
2016–17

Identify opportunities to improve data
sharing and access to assessment with
international regulators
Develop and implement an
international engagement strategy

Two public consultations were
undertaken in 2015–16 on the
APVMA’s framework for the use of
international assessments

Partially
completed

The APVMA continued its
program of international
engagement in 2015–16, including
participating in key international
scientific and regulatory forums,
such as OECD, VICH and WHO

Partner in at least three GJRs

Completed

The first joint review of a veterinary
medicine (meloxicam) completed
with Canada and New Zealand
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Completed GJR: oxathiapiprolin

As part of the OECD network and with
GJR partners, participate in a review
of the conduct of GJRs to streamline
processes and ensure it meets the
needs of industry and regulators

N/A

The APVMA is continuing to
engage with the OECD with a view
to improving the GJR partnership
process

Participate in relevant OECD and
VICH activities designed to harmonise
assessment, data requirements
and/or registration systems across
international regulators

Completed

APVMA participated in the 33rd
meeting of the VICH in June 2016,
and provided a report on survey
of RNAi regulation for Regulatory
Reference Groups RSGs and
RRGs and contributed to the crop
field test and rotational residues
guidelines

Complete a usability review of the
external portal, and implement
enhancements

Partially
completed

The useability review commenced
in 2015–16 with the report and
recommendations considered in
early 2016–17

Enhance online automatic validation
of applications to facilitate complete
applications

Ongoing

A range of activities were
completed within these initiatives,
including:

Streamline application process through
end-to-end project management

nn a process map for Item 7
applications
nn a release process for advice
reports on applications from
the Scientific Assessment and
Chemical Review program
nn updating of the preliminary
assessment work instruction
nn mapping of s. 14 criteria
nn review of e-label portal

APPENDIXES

Ongoing GJR: bicyclopyrone,
flupyradifurone and cyclaniliprole

A P V M A A N N U A L R E P O R T 2 0 1 5–1 6

100

Continuously improve access to
external scientific reviewers

Completed

A larger number of external
science reviewers are now
available to conduct technical
assessments on behalf of the
APVMA in a range of fields,
including efficacy, toxicology,
health and safety, and
environmental science

Identify opportunities for the further
expansion of Objective Workflow

Completed

Twenty workflows were developed
encompassing 112 active users of
Objective Workflow

Collect annual returns on active
information for the Department of
Agriculture and Water

Completed

Developed and deployed an
online system to collect annual
returns

Review GMP business processes
and implement administrative
enhancements

Ongoing

GMP business processes were
mapped and the associated IT
requirements articulated
However, new administrative
enhancements were not
implemented this year because
of competing requirements for
IT resources

System developed to capture and
report on data on assessment of
non-compliance allegations and how
compliance tools are used

Completed

The internal records management
system was identified as the most
appropriate system to collect and
extract compliance statistics in the
short to medium term

Undertake compliance assessments
and relevant compliance activities

Completed

The compliance and enforcement
program focuses on education,
engagement and enforcement in
alignment with the strategy

Review existing memorandum of
understanding with Therapeutic Goods
Administration (TGA) and identify
opportunities to minimise duplication
of audits for manufacturers of mutual
interest

Completed

A new draft bilateral MOU with
TGA was completed

Progress EU recognition of APVMA
GMP audits to facilitate export to
the EU

Completed

EMA and EU discussions held in
May 2016
Discussions are underway with
industry to ascertain the level
of interest in progressing EU
recognition of our audits

Deferred

This activity was deferred pending
the outcome of the GMP review

Develop MOUs with partner regulators
for exchange of compliance and
enforcement information

Ongoing

Work commenced with Australian
Sports Anti-Doping Authority
to develop an MOU for law
enforcement and information
sharing

Conduct an audit of refusals and
section 159 notices to demonstrate
100% are within policy parameters

Completed

A sample audit of files was
conducted to ascertain whether
refusals given under various
provisions of the Agvet Code
and the issuing of notices under
s.159 of the Agvet Code met both
policy parameters (for example
relevant CEO directions and
work instructions) and legislative
requirements
While the audit identified some
administrative issues, it indicated
that the decisions were technically
sound

Develop system to capture and report
average number of requests for
information

Completed

Identify options to improve adverse
experience reporting (AER) through
process automation and integration of
AER intelligence

Ongoing

Information is requested under
s. 159
These requests can be captured
through the APVMA’s business
intelligence tools
An options paper is in
development
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STRATEGY 3: BUILD A CLIENT-FOCUSED APPROACH TO SERVICE DELIVERY, COMMITTED
TO CONTINUOUS IMPROVEMENT

Key result area: the APVMA is open and transparent in its dealings with regulated entities
Design and implement a system to
publish performance information
and decisions

Completed

A system was developed to
prepare key APVMA performance
information for publication
Information was published on
our website in February, May and
August 2016 at ‘Performance
statistics’ (apvma.gov.au/
node/19741)

Implement a survey to benchmark and
track client experience across a range
of criteria for APVMA service delivery

Ongoing

The survey design brief was
prepared and the survey is
expected to be run in 2016–17

Communication of compliance and
enforcement outcomes is consistent
with the compliance and enforcement
strategy

Completed

Key compliance performance
information has been published on
the APVMA website through CEO
blogs, regulatory updates and
other media pieces
We continue to add new
information

Publish new chemical review work plans

Completed

Work plans for chemical review
were published and can be
accessed via apvma.gov.au/
chemicals-and-products/chemicalreview/listing

Review existing online feedback
system to inform the design and
implementation of service delivery

Completed

A review was completed and
implementation of the review
findings will begin in 2016–17

Design and implement a new model
for PAA

Completed

A new PAA process was
implemented from
3 November 2015

Design and implement a system to
capture and report data relevant to
customer service standards

Ongoing

The APVMA is currently exploring
options to capture and report on
service statistics via a CRM tool

Implement a stakeholder perceptions
survey to establish baseline metrics on
satisfaction

Ongoing

The survey design brief was
prepared and the survey will be
run in 2016–17

Refresh the design of the APVMA’s
regulatory updates, and seek quarterly
user feedback on content relevance

Partially
completed

A regulatory update subscriber
survey was conducted in 2015–16
to seek feedback
Improvements will be implemented
as part of the useability review of
our online services and channels

Design and implement a system to
regularly check stakeholder views and
experiences with APVMA website

Completed

A website feedback mechanism is
now available on every page of the
APVMA website
The information collected is
passed to individual page owners
for appropriate action

Design and implement a program of
content review for guidance material
on the website

Completed

A web governance policy was
developed that includes a content
review process, and identifies
owners for each page on the
APVMA website
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Key result area: the APVMA actively contributes to continuous improvement of regulatory
frameworks
Design and implement a new
stakeholder consultation framework

Ongoing

A consolidated stakeholder
list for key companies, industry
associations and government
agencies was prepared as part
of the stakeholder consultation
framework

Engage with states and territories on
initiatives as required

Completed

The APVMA regularly engages with
states and territories and held a
face-to-face forum with states and
territories in 2015–16

Offer hosting of twice-yearly forums for
states and territories

Completed

A state forum was held to discuss
minor use permits

Hold monthly meetings with the
Department of Agriculture and Water
Resources about legislative frameworks
and implementation

Completed

Regular meetings held with the
Department of Agriculture and
Water Resources with the following
items progressed:
nn implementation of legislative
changes relating to overseas
manufacture, name and web
content on primary/secondary
applications
nn comments on GHS review
consultation paper
nn IT business system changes for
excipient substitution
nn IT changes for applications with
item numbers of 13A and 29

Provide input as requested to
government documents, including
ministerials, policy documents and
legislative proposals

Completed

Requests completed as required.
Key activities include:
nn work instruction for supply
chain, and logistics
nn submission for Regulation
of Agriculture Productivity
Commission
nn information for agricultural
innovation inquiry and Hendra
virus vaccine inquiry

STRATEGY 4: OPERATE AS A CONTEMPORARY, HIGH-PERFORMING AND
EFFICIENT ORGANISATION

105

Implement a new quality system
by 30 June 2016, including the
development of a business model
and definition of key APVMA business
process

Completed

A new quality management
system has been implemented,
and instructional material is being
added to it

Complete a new cost recovery impact
statement based on current fee
structure for implementation from
1 July 2016

Partially
completed

Complete a refresh of desktop PCs by
December 2020

Completed

New desktop PCs were rolled out
in March 2016

Conduct a pilot of secure cloud
infrastructure for public-facing IT
systems

Ongoing

This work has been delayed, but
this activity will resume following
the development of an APVMA
enterprise architecture and ICT
strategic plan

Comply with the PSPF and review
APVMA compliance against the ASD
top 35 mitigation strategies for cyber
security

Completed

KPMG completed an external PSPF
review

Key business processes for the
APVMA registration process have
been identified and defined
An activity-based costing exercise
was completed and a possible new
fee structure identified
This will likely be implemented in
October 2016 following ministerial
approval

The report provided a basis to
develop a cyber security road map
This task will be completed parallel
to the development of an ICT
strategic plan

Undertake a project to cleanse the
agvet database

Completed

Data cleansing was completed

Improvements to the APVMA’s external
and internal applications completed to
agreed timeframes

Completed

Improvements were made within
agreed timeframes and include the
delivery of a new client module,
security module, and tasks and
milestones

APPENDIXES

Key result area: organisational health and financial viability
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Key result area: organisational health and financial viability
Develop and implement a new
enterprise agreement (EA)

Partially
completed

Draft EA provided to APVMA staff
in May 2016

Develop and implement a learning
and development strategy flowing
from the needs identified in the
capability review by June 2016

Completed

A learning and development
strategy was developed and
delivered to APVMA staff in May
2016
Implementation has started and
will continue in 2016–17

Implement a learning network to
better tailor and target learning
requirements

Completed

A learning network of 10 members
is in place with terms of reference
and governance documents
High-priority learning requirements
were identified for several
Microsoft software products
Audits were completed and
training delivered

Implement a corporate training
calendar focused on personal
efficiency and management, by
30 June 2016

Completed

A training calendar was developed.
Training has been delivered on a
range of topics, including scientific
analysis, use of spreadsheets, legal,
administration and management
principles

Wo rk h eal t h and safe ty
As part of our work health and safety (WHS) arrangements, the APVMA:
nn promotes and develops arrangements to ensure employees’ health, safety and wellbeing at
work, in accordance with the Work Health and Safety Act 2011
nn provides operational guidelines for the operation of the Health and Safety Committee
nn provides mechanisms for reviewing, varying, and informing employees about WHS
arrangements, and for dealing with disputes during consultation.
The APVMA Health and Safety Committee continues to monitor and inform APVMA-wide WHS
activities. Two new health and safety representatives were elected to the committee in 2016, and
have undertaken the required training.

Health and wellbeing initiatives
In 2015–16, we continued to support initiatives to help staff manage their health and wellbeing
at work and at home. We provided free influenza vaccinations for staff, facilitated corporate gym
memberships, and invited staff to undertake on-site fitness and general health assessments with
qualified health practitioners.
The APVMA People Strategy, released in May 2016, focuses on ensuring a positive employee
experience, including the promotion of physical and mental health and wellbeing initiatives.
Partnering with the ACT Government, staff were invited to participate in an online health and
wellbeing survey that provided tailored individual feedback, and a summary on the general
wellbeing of the APVMA workforce. Additionally, a large number of APVMA staff participated in the
Healthier Work Get Active Challenge, promoting ways to keep active while at work.
We focused on discussing mental health over 2015–16, actively promoting initiatives such as the
‘Heads Up’ campaign (a joint Safe Work Australia and Beyond Blue initiative) to staff, who were
encouraged to participate. The APVMA has a number of staff who are accredited Mental Health
First Aid practitioners. Mental wellbeing will remain a focus of activities throughout 2016–17.
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There was no advertising and market research undertaken during 2015–16.

E co l o g ic al ly sus t a i nabl e
de v e l opment and env i ronm e n tal
pe rf o rmanc e
The APVMA has adopted an environmental management system that meets the requirements of
s. 516A of the Environment Protection and Biodiversity Conservation Act 1999 and the Agvet Code.
The system follows the principles of ecologically sustainable development and environmental
management, enabling the APVMA to minimise its effect on the environment. The environmental
management system uses ISO 14001:2004 as its framework.
As far as possible, the APVMA strives to be a ‘paperless’ office, implementing an electronic
document and records management system (EDRMS) to significantly reduce the amount of paper
and printer consumables used within the office. Additionally, the APVMA works to reduce its
environmental impact by:
nn recycling paper, plastic and kitchen waste to reduce landfill
nn maintaining water tanks for watering gardens at the APVMA’s premises in Canberra
nn meeting the whole-of-government Energy Efficiency in Government Operations target for
energy use of 7500 megajoules per person
nn purchasing 100 per cent recycled paper
nn using environmental criteria guidelines to ensure that environmental effects are considered for
all purchases
nn using VMware computer hardware to reduce electricity consumption
nn using high-efficiency T5 lighting and movement-activated lighting
nn using video and teleconferencing facilities to minimise travel
nn using multifunction-device printers that reduce paper waste by secure release, and authenticate
all print, copy, scan and fax jobs
nn maintaining on-site worm farms to process waste food collected from APVMA kitchens to reduce
waste going to landfill.

AAT

Administrative Appeals Tribunal

AERP

Adverse Experience Reporting Program

agvet

agricultural and veterinary

APS

Australian Public Service

APVMA

Australian Pesticides and Veterinary Medicines Authority

ASD

Australian Signals Directorate

CEO

Chief Executive Officer

CRM

customer relationship management

CSIRO

Commonwealth Scientific and Industrial Research Organisation

EA

enterprise agreement

ELT

Executive Leadership Team

EMA

European Medicines Agency

FAO

Food and Agriculture Organization of the United Nations

GHS

Globally Harmonized System of Classification and Labelling of
Chemicals

GJR

Global Joint Review

GMP

good manufacturing practice

ICT

information and communications technology

IT

information technology

JECFA

Joint FAO/WHO Expert Committee on Food Additives

MLSILC

Manufacturers’ Licensing Scheme Industry Liaison Committee

MOU

Memorandum of Understanding

MRL

maximum residue limit

NRS

National Registration Scheme for Agricultural and Veterinary
Chemicals

OAIC

Office of the Australian Information Commissioner
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OECD

The Organisation for Economic Co-operation and
Development

PAA

pre-application assistance

PBS

Portfolio Budget Statement

PGPA Act

Public Governance, Performance and Accountability Act

PSPF

Protective Security Policy Framework

Q1

first quarter

RNAi

RNA interference

RPF

Regulator Performance Framework

RRG

Regulatory Reference Group

RSG

Regulatory Services Group

RSN

Regulatory Science Network

SQC

Science Quality Committee

TGA

Therapeutic Goods Administration

VICH

International Cooperation on Harmonisation of Technical
Requirements for Registration of Veterinary Medicinal Products

WHO

World Health Organization

WHS

Work, health and safety

G l o s s a ry
2015–16

1 July 2015 to 30 June 2016.

active constituent

The component of a pesticide or veterinary
medicine product that is responsible for its
physiological or pharmacological action.

adverse experience

Any undesirable experience arising from the
use of a chemical; adverse experiences may
affect human or animal health, the environment
or other factors.

agvet

Agricultural and veterinary.

antibiotic

Substances produced by micro-organisms that
are antagonistic in high dilution to the growth
and viability of other micro-organisms.

applicant

A person or company who applies to the
APVMA to register a pesticide or veterinary
chemical for use in Australia.

approved label

A label that is approved and complies with the
relevant particulars recorded in the relevant
APVMA file for the label.

compliance

Compliance with any applicable agvet law.
See also non-compliance.

cost recovery

Fees and charges relating to the provision of
government goods and services (including
regulation) to the private and other nongovernment sectors of the economy.

extension of use

The agreed use of a pesticide or veterinary
chemical for a purpose other than those
specified on the original label. Registered
products must be used only for purposes that
are specified on the label, and the APVMA must
grant permission for any extensions of use.

good manufacturing practice

A means of ensuring that veterinary chemical
products are consistently manufactured in
a safe and clean environment, by specified
methods, under adequate supervision, with
effective quality control procedures.
This ensures that the finished product
meets the standards of safety, identity,
strength, quality and purity that it is
represented to possess.
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licence

Authority to manufacture pesticides or
veterinary medicines according to s. 123 of
the Agvet Code.

maximum residue limit

The maximum concentration of a residue,
resulting from the registered use of an
agricultural or veterinary chemical that is legally
permitted or recognised as acceptable in or on
food.

maximum residue limit standard

A list of agvet chemicals and the corresponding
residue levels of these chemicals that are
permitted in food and animal feed.

minor use

A use that would not produce sufficient
economic return to an applicant to meet the
cost of registering the product for that use.

nanotechnology

The design, characterisation and application
of materials engineered at a molecular
(nanometre-scale) level.

non-compliance

Non-compliance with any applicable agvet law.
Non-compliance may include the sale and use
of unregistered products, supply of restricted
products to unauthorised users, unapproved
labels, unfounded claims in advertising or
other media, or active constituents that do not
conform to APVMA standards.

non-target

Crops, plants or animals that are not the target
of the chemical, but may be affected by its use.
See also spray drift.

pesticides

Substances or mixtures of substances intended
for preventing, destroying, repelling or
mitigating any pest; also known as agricultural
chemical products.

registrant

A person or company who registers a pesticide
or veterinary medicine product for use in
Australia.

registration

Official recognition that a pesticide or
veterinary medicine is safe and will work
when used according to the label. Before an
agricultural or veterinary chemical product can
be legally supplied, sold or used in Australia, it
must be registered by the APVMA.

A set of guidelines that provide details of how
the relevant agvet legislation is enacted by
the APVMA, and how agvet chemicals can be
registered in Australia.

release for supply

Release for supply is a step of manufacture that
involves a comprehensive review of batch and
related records to ensure that all the necessary
procedures have been followed, all equipment
calibrated, and all raw materials (including
packaging), intermediate and finished product
complies with specifications.

spray drift

The movement of airborne spray droplets
or particles from the spray nozzle beyond
the intended target area by wind and/or air
currents to an area not intended to be treated.

statutory time

The legislatively prescribed timeframes in
which the APVMA must process applications for
registration.
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L i s t o f requirements
( co m p l ianc e index)
Requirement

Page

Details of the legislation establishing the body

2

Summary of the objects and functions of the entity as set out in the legislation

3

Purposes of the entity as included in the entity’s corporate plan for the period

9

Name of the person holding the position of responsible Minister and the titles of that
responsible Minister

2

Directions given to the entity by a Minister under an Act or instrument during the period

3

Government policy orders that applied in relation to the entity during the period under
section 22 of the Act

3

If, during the period, the entity has not complied with a direction or order referred to
in paragraph (d) or (e)—particulars of the non compliance

3

Annual performance statements for the entity for the period

23–49

A statement of any significant issue reported to the responsible Minister under
paragraph 19(1)(e) of the Act that relates to non compliance with the finance law in
relation to the entity

3

Information on the accountable authority, or each member of the accountable authority,
of the entity during the period

5

An outline of the organisational structure of the entity (including any subsidiaries of
the entity)

5

An outline of the location (whether or not in Australia) of major activities or facilities
of the entity

22

Information in relation to the main corporate governance practices used by the entity
during the period
Any significant activities and changes that affected the operations or structure of the
entity during the period
Particulars of judicial decisions or decisions of administrative tribunals made during
the period that have had, or may have, a significant effect on the operations of the entity

12–18
4
20

Particulars of any report on the entity given during the period by:
(i) the Auditor General, other than a report under section 43 of the Act; or

20

(ii) a Committee of either House, or of both Houses, of the Parliament or

20

(iii) the Commonwealth Ombudsman or

20

(iv) the Office of the Australian Information Commissioner

20

Details of any indemnity that applied during the period to the accountable authority,
any member of the accountable authority or officer of the entity against a liability
(including premiums paid, or agreed to be paid, for insurance against the authority,
member or officer’s liability for legal costs)

21

An index identifying where the requirements of this section and section 17BF (if applicable)
are to be found.
114–17

I n de x
AAT see Administrative Appeals Tribunal
abbreviations, 109–10
absenteeism, 47–48
accountability of corporate governance, 18–19

Agricultural and Veterinary Chemicals Code Act
1994, 2
Agricultural and Veterinary Chemicals Code
Regulations 1995, 2–3
Agriculture White Paper, funding from, ix

acronyms, 109–10

Agvet (Code) Regulations see Agricultural and
Veterinary Chemicals Code Regulations 1995

actives, applications for, 26–27, 32–34

agvet chemicals see chemicals

Administration Act see Agricultural and Veterinary
Chemicals (Administration) Act 1992

Agvet Code see Agricultural and Veterinary
Chemicals Code

Administrative Appeals Tribunal, 20

ANAO see Australian National Audit Office

Adverse Experience Reporting Program, 2

annual performance statement, 23–49

advertising, 108

appendixes, 93–108

advice, satisfaction with, 37

applications

Advisory Board, 14–15

advice about, 37

agency resourcing statement, 52

evaluation of, 6

Agricultural and Veterinary Chemical Products
(Collection of Levy) Act 1994, 4

fast-tracking, ix
fee for, 4, 52

Agricultural and Veterinary Chemical Products
(Collection of Levy) Regulations 1994, 4

regulation involved in, 39–40

Agricultural and Veterinary Chemical Products
Levy Imposition (Customs) Act 1994, 4

timeframes for, 26–29, 32–35

statistics on, 43

Agricultural and Veterinary Chemical Products
Levy Imposition (Excise) Act 1994, 4

APS Code of Conduct, 47

Agricultural and Veterinary Chemical Products
Levy Imposition (General) Act 1994, 4

Arthy, Kareena, 6 see also Chief Executive Officer

Agricultural and Veterinary Chemicals
(Administration) Act 1992
Audit Committee management of, 13
establishment of Advisory Board under, 14
establishment of the APVMA and powers
conferred by, 2–3
Agricultural and Veterinary Chemicals Code

APVMA regulatory update, 36

letter of transmittal, iii
report and outlook, ix–xi
assessments see applications; reviews
Audit Committee, 15–16
roles of, 13, 18
Auditor-General’s reports, 20
audits

Audit Committee enforcement of, 16

findings of, 48

meeting the requirements of, 108

of correspondence, 37

powers and responsibilities conferred by, 2–3

of good manufacturing practice, 38, 40

reporting under, 19

of regulated entities, 41
of timeframes to finalise applications, 35
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results of, 54

Commonwealth Ombudsman, 20

timeframes for, 29

communication, performance in, 36–38
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Australian National Audit Office, 15
Australian Regulatory Science Network, x, 46

compliance, 39–42 see also Legal and
Compliance
Chief Executive Officer’s report and outlook, x

APVMA Gazette, 19

timeframes for activities related to, 29

APVMA operational plan 2015–16 see also annual
performance statement
measuring effectiveness through, 12

with finance law, 3
consultation

Strategy 1, 9, 94–97

Chief Executive Officer’s report and outlook,
x–xi

Strategy 2, 9, 98–101

corporate governance and, 12

Strategy 3, 9, 102–04

cost of, 54

Strategy 4, 9, 105–06

extent and satisfaction with, 38

APVMA Regulator Performance Framework see
Regulator Performance Framework

with stakeholders, 45
with the public, 47

B

corporate governance, 11–21
Bhula, Raj, 6
budget see Portfolio Budget Statement

corporate plan, 12 see also APVMA operational
plan 2015–16
Corporate Services, 5–6

C
Carroll, Elizabeth, 7
chemicals

court cases, xi, 20
customer service standards
adherence to, 37

applications for, 25–27
improving access to, xi
review of, 6
role of APVMA regarding, 2–3
safety of, viii
Chief Executive Officer see also Arthy, Kareena
chairing of the Executive Leadership Team, 13
role in Audit Committee, 15
sub-roles of, 5–6
Chief Financial Officer, 15
Chief Information Officer, 15
Chief Operating Officer, 6
Chief Scientist, 7
Code of Conduct of the APS, 47
Codex Alimentarius Commission, x
collaboration of corporate governance, 12
Comcover, insurance with, 21

statistics on, 43
cyber intrusions, 49

D
declarations of interest
by Advisory Board, 15
by Audit Committee, 16
by Manufacturers’ Licensing Scheme Industry
Liason Committee, 18
Department of Agriculture and Water Resources,
communication with, 45
Department of Agriculture and Water Resources,
review by, 4
Department of Environment and Energy,
transactions with, 19
Department of Health, transactions with, 19
direct sourcing, 54
disability reporting, 21

ecological impact, 108
ELT see Executive Leadership Team
employees see staff

governance see corporate governance; executive
management
government policy orders, 3
guidelines
adherence to, 31

enforcement

use of, 38

strategies for, 39–41
timeframes for activities related to, 29

H

Enforcement Committee, 13

health and safety see work health and safety

Environment Protection and Biodiversity
Conservation Act 1999, 108

House of Representatives Standing Committee on
Agriculture and Industry, xi, 20

environmental impact, 108

I

environmental scans, 30
equity, 4, 49, 54
Executive Directors, 6–7
Executive Leadership Team, 13
executive management, 5–7
expenditure, 53–54

F

impediments, removing, 30
import consents, timeframes for, 28
income, 4, 52
indemnities, 21
industry awareness workshops, 30
information requests, 42
information technology, 49

Federal Court matters, xi, 20

inquiries

feedback, 36–38

Inquiry into agricultural innovation, xi, 20

mechanisms, 44

Inquiry into the Hendra virus (HeV) Equivacc
vaccine and its use by veterinary surgeons in
Queensland, xi, 20

figures, list of, vii
finance law, compliance with, 3
financial performance, 48–49
financial statements, 55–90
summary, 51–54
financial reserve, 54

insurance, 21
International Cooperation on Harmonisation
of Technical Requirements for Registration of
Veterinary Medicinal Products, 46
issues considered

fraud control, 18

by Advisory Board, 14

functions of the APVMA, 3

by Audit Committee, 16

funding, 4

by Manufacturers’ Licensing Scheme Industry
Liason Committee, 18

G

IT, 49

General Counsel, 7
Global Joint Reviews (GJRs), 31
good manufacturing practice (GMP)
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J
Joint Meeting on Pesticides Residues, x

audits, 29, 38, 40

Joyce, Barnaby, 2

review and improvement of, x

judicial decisions, xi, 20
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L

O

Legal and Compliance, 5, 7

OAIC, reviews by, 20

letter of transmittal, iii

Oakton, audit by, 35

levies

objectives, 9 see also mission

imposition and collection of, 4

obtaining information from subsidiaries, 21

income from, 52

OECD

M

chairing committees of, x
engagement with, 46

Major Projects Board, 13
management see corporate governance;
executive management

Office of the Australian Information Commissioner,
reviews by, 20

manufacture see good manufacturing practice

Office of the Chief Scientist, 5, 7

Manufacturers’ Licensing Scheme Industry Liaison
Committee, 16–18

Ombudsman’s investigations, 20
online systems see also website

declarations of interest by, 18

feedback from, 44

issues considered by, 18

satisfaction with, 32

meetings and attendance, 17
terms of reference, 16

operational plan see APVMA operational plan
2015–16

market research, 108

organisation, 1–9

medicines see veterinary medicines

Organisation for Economic Co-operation and
Development see OECD

meetings and attendance
of Advisory Board, 14

Outcome 1, 53 see also performance indicators

of Audit Committee, 15

P

of Manufacturers’ Licensing Scheme Industry
Liason Committee, 17

parliamentary committees, 20

Minister for Agriculture and Water resources, 2
ministerial directions, 3
mission, viii see also objectives
MLSILC see Manufacturers’ Licensing Scheme
Industry Liaison Committee
monitoring strategies, 41

N
National Disability Strategy 2010–20, 21
nominal reserve, 4
non-compliance see compliance
Norden, Alan, 6

PBS see Portfolio Budget Statement
performance criteria: performance information is
published, 43
performance indicators, 24
activities of lower regulatory risk, 40
applications completed within timeframes, 26
business processes, 32
business processes and financial management
systems, 48–49
compliance and enforcement activities
completed within timeframes, 29
feedback mechanisms, 44
improvements in regulatory science
capabilities, 46–47
information requested from regulated entities,
42

Public Governance, Performance and
Accountability Act 2013

motivated and trained workforce, 47–48

Audit Committee management of, 13

operating environment for the regulated
entities, 30

non-compliance with finance law, 3
provision of performance statement under, 24

protect and manage information and enhance
information technology, 49
satisfaction with consultative processes, 38
satisfaction with information and guidance
materials, 36–38
satisfaction with the quality and timeliness of
advice on decisions, 37
performance statement, 23–49

status as corporate Commonwealth entity
under, 2
Public inquiry into regulation of agriculture, xi, 20
purchases, quotes required for, 54
purpose of the APVMA, 2

Q

performance statistics, 32

Queensland Parliament’s Agriculture and
Environment Committee, xi, 20

permanent label registration, xi

quotes required for purchases, 54

permits
applications for, 26–27, 32, 34

R

fee for, 4

recruitment, 48

granter of, 6

Reeves, Phil, 7

moving to permanent label registration, xi

Registration Management and Evaluation, 5–6

pesticides see chemicals

Registration Quality Committee, 13

PGPA Act see Public Governance, Performance
and Accountability Act 2013

registrations see applications
regulation

planning of corporate governance, 12

decisions on, 25, 32

policy orders see government policy orders

enhancing, 45

Portfolio Budget Statement, 12, 24, 49

regulatory burden, ix, 9, 39–41

powers of the APVMA, 2–4

Regulator Performance Framework, 12, 43

pre-application assistance, x, 37–38

regulatory science, x, 46–47

new approach to, x

Regulatory Science Network, x, 46

timeframes for, 28–29

removing impediments, 30

presentations received by Audit Committee, 16

renewal fees, 52

privacy, 19

reporting, 19, 49

Privacy Act 1988, 19

reviews, x–xi, 20 see also consultation; feedback

Privacy Commissioner, 19

risk management, ix–x, 39–41, 46–47

Productivity Commission’s Public inquiry into
regulation of agriculture, xi, 20
products, applications for, 26–27, 32–33
profile of the APVMA, 2
profit see income
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corporate, 13, 18
RPF see Regulator Performance Framework
RSN see Australian Regulatory Science Network

INDEX

international data guidelines, standards and
assessments, 31
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Strategy 4, 9, 105–06

S
Saunders, Cate, 6

subsidiaries, 21

science, 46–47

sustainability, 108

Science Quality Committee, 13

T

Scientific Assessment and Chemical Review, 5–6
scrutiny, xi

tables, list of, vi–vii

security, 49

terms of reference of Manufacturers’ Licensing
Scheme Industry Liason Committee, 15

seminars

timeframes

on industry information and training, 30

completion of processes within, 26–29

on regulatory science, 46

for applications, 32–35

Senate Estimates Rural and Regional Affairs and
Transport Legislation Committee, xi, 20

for regulatory science projects, 47
improving adherence to, ix

Senior Leadership Team, 13
service charter, 19
special mentions of staff, 7
staff, 5–8
executive, 13–15
performance of, 47–48

statistics on, 43
training, 47–48
transactions, 19
transparency, 42–44
tribunals, 20

Staff Consultative Committee, 13

U

stakeholders

United Nations, engagement with, x

engagement with, 12, 38, 44–46
feedback from, 36
forums for, 30
views of, xi
standards
adherence to, 31
adoption of international standards, 38
setting, x
statutory notices, 29

V
veterinary medicines, 25–27
VICH, engagement with, 46
virus attacks, 49
vision, viii

W
website, 32, 36
science pages on, 46

statutory provisions, 107–08

WHO, engagement with, x

strategies

work health and safety, 49, 107

compliance, monitoring and enforcement,
39–41

Work Health and Safety Committee, 13

National Disability Strategy 2010–20, 21

Working Group on Pesticides, x

regulatory science, 46

World Health Organization, engagement with, x

Strategy 1, 9, 94–97
Strategy 2, 9, 98–101
Strategy 3, 9, 102–04

workforce see staff

C O N TA C T
AUSTRALIAN PESTICIDES AND VETERINARY MEDICINES AUTHORITY
18 Wormald Street Symonston ACT 2609
PO BOX 6182 Kingston ACT 2604 Australia
www.apvma.gov.au

